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HOUSE OF THE PEOPLE
Friday, 1st August, 1952.

The House met at a Quarter Past
Eight of the Clock.

[MR. SPEAKER in the Chair]
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

(No Quesiions: Part I not published.)

FORWARD CONTRACTS
LATION) BILL

The Minist of Com ce and
Industry (Shri T. T. Krishnamachari):
I beg to move for leave to introduce
a Bill to provide for the regulation
of certain matters relating to forward
contracts, the oprohibition of options
in goods and for matlers connected
therewith.

(REGU-

Mr, Speaker: The question is.

“That leave be granted to in-
troduce a Bill to provide for the
regulation of certain matters re-
lating to forward contracts, the
prohibition of ootions in goods
and i:or matters connected there-
with.”

The motion was adopted.

Shri T, T. Krishnamachari; I in-
troduce the Bill.

PREVENTIVE DETENTION (SECOND
AMENDMENT) BILL

The Minister of Home Affairs and
States (Dr Katju): I beg to move:

_“That the Bill further to amend
Lie  Preventive Detention Act,
1950. as reporied by the Joint
Committee, be taken inio consi-
deration,”
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The House would have noticed that
the Report has appended to it a large
number of dissenting minutes. It has
been rather a curious experience for
the Select Committee, The normal
rule has always been that when a Bill
is referred to a Select Committee it
is presumed that the House acquiesc-
es in the principle of the Bill and only
details will be thrasied out. In this
particular case hon. Members who
became members of the Committee
declared on the floor of the House
that they were opposed 1o the Bill
root and branch. every principle of
the Bill and, therefore. no one would
be surprised that they would not be
satisfied and could not be satisfied.

Mr. Speaker: I would like to
make one point clear here. When
the motion for reference of the
Bill to the Select Committee was
put to the vote of the House it was
pointed out that certain Members of
the House did not fee! themselves
beund and they had some mental
reservations of their own as regards
the principle of the Bill. I had then
clarified the position that whatever
mental reservations individual Mem-
bers may have, so far as ihe House
was concerned, by the acceptance of
the motion, the House as a whole was
committed tfo the principle of *he Bill
and there would be no guestion of
reopening any discussion on the prin-
ciple of the Bill. Whatever one . may
have to say as regards the details is
a different matter. The only diffe-
rence in the usual or normal proce-
dure and the present one is that the
House was pleased to give instruc-
tions to the Select Committee not
only to touch on and consider the
clauses of the amending Bill but also
all the sections of the original Act.
That does not mean that the prin-
ciple of the Act is open for discussion
today.

Dr. Katju: Sir. T am indebled. and
I hope the House as a whole is in-
debted. to you. Sir, for this_clarifira-
tion of the whole vrocedure. I was
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only going to suggest in passing that
hon. —Members who went into the
Select Committee on that particular
basis would not be satisfied, could not
be satisfied, by any concession which
might be made. They said openly
that they were opponents of the Bill
and they were there not with a view
to try to improve the Bill in subs-
tance, but only, in so far as they could,
to make it ineffective.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee (Hooghly):
Sir, we must protest against these
remarks. That was not the attitude
of all the Members of the Select Com-
mittee. 1t is not fair to us.

Mr. Speaker: He said some of the
Members.

Shri A. K. Gopalan (Cannanore):
Sir, 1 have also to make some obser-
vations with regard to the hon.
Minister’s remark. Though on the
floor of the House we said that we
were opoosed to the Bill, we
went into the Select Committee with
a view to improve the Bill by sug-
gesting amendments. The ma
amendment we suggested was that if
there is to be preventive detention,
it must be used only in emergencies.
It is not opposition to the Bill. Ewen
though we did not agree to the prin-
ciple of preventive detention, when
we actually went into the Select Com-
wittee we said: “We agree to the
preventive detention: but it must be
used only when there is an emergency”.
Every amendment that we moved in the
Selert' Committee was an amendment
to the Bill: not with a view to
set aside the whole Bill. I am sure
the hon. Minister will accept this and
proceed on that basis.

Dr. Katju: I only wish to say one
thing, so that I may not have to
repeat it again and again. If any
interruption comes from any hon.
Member, I shall take it and consider
it absolutely a sort of presumptive
proof that the cap fits his head.

Dr. 8. P. Mookerjee: (Calcutta
South-East): The cap fits vour head
very well.

Mr. Speaker: It is belier not to rake
up past controversies.” The hon. the
Home Minister will see that if he
carries on  in  that attitude, he will
be inviting replies which cannot be
prevented then. If he goes on in that
strain T musl allow the other side
also to go on. But, with all respect
to the House, the hon. the Home
Minister and the Owo=ansition. I am
of the view that such a procedure,
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though it may satisfy the urge of
some of us to go at each other, Iis,
on the whole, neither conducive to the
growth of Parliamentary Govern-
ment nor to tie dignity of the House.
That is the humble view 1 hold, in
spite of there being scope for diffe-
rences of opinion. On other grounds
also, I should appeal to all hon
Members, including the Home Minis-
ter, not to go into the previous his-
tory but take the Bill as it is before
the House, as amended by the Joint
Committee, and on the assumption
that Mr. Gopalan and Mr. Chatterjee
and also Dr. Mookerjee......

Dr. 8. P. Mookerjee: I was not
there.

Mr. Speaker: Anvhow, I take it he
will not differ from me—agree that
preventive detention may be there,
should be there—whatever their men-
tal reservations about it may be, that
it should be so worked that it will not
do any harm or mischief such as they
are afraid of. That is the limited
issue before the House. So, whether
there should be preventive detention
or not is not the question before the
House now.

Dr. Katju: Sir, starting with your
ruling, I shall immediately proceed to
21_?1 main points that now arise on this

ill.

The first important point on which
there has been a difference of opi-
nion is about the duration of the Bill
The Bill as was originally moved by
me provided that it should remain
in force for two years, namely till
1954. 1 would have made it 1st of
October 1954, But to summon the
House in the month of August and
September to re-enact the Bill would
be very inconvenient. Therefore, we
put down 31st of December 1854.

In future the House might consider
a Bill like this without any great
climatic inconvenience.

Now in the Select Committee
amendments varied. I would not call
it the extreme right or the extreme
left. An attempt was made to re-
duce the duration to three months,
namely, from 30th of September to
31st of December 1952.- On the other
hand, put it in any way you like,
there were amendments that the Bil
might be extended to 1955, 1956, 1957,
and I think somebody also said 1958,
and the Select Committee after a pro-
longed consideration thought that the
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Bill as framed was proper. I suggest
to the Houss that the Select Com-
mittee has arrived at a proper deci-
sion.

I am not going to cover the ground
once again on the thenretic discus-
sions and repetitions of principles,
but I will beg the House to consider
the prevailing conditions in the
world, outside India and inside India.
We are living almost in stormy con-
ditions and I say again that the ex-
tension of the Act, if it is proved as
desirable by two years instead of one
year makes really no vital change in
the situation. So far as I can see
and speaking for myself, we cannot
expect that there will be any great
or material change in the world posi-
tion and in the Indian position in the
next coming two years. The House
would always bear in mind that this
is not an imperative Act in this Sense
that it must be acted upon. It all
depends. Even today there are many
States in which there is not a single
person in detention, and we all
hope and pray that the situation
would gradually improve, and if it
does improve, I am sure that no one
would be more happy than the State
authorities and the Central Govern-
ment that the Act should remain on
the statute book without any use
whatsoever in the coming two years.
But we must take a realistic attitude
about this matter and while owing to
a variety of circumstances, the situa-
tion has improved, there are still very
many black clouds in the horizon and
very many danger signals to be scen.
I am not in a position and it would
not be proper for me to say what sort
of information is received from time
to time, almost every week by Gov-
ernment and we cannot possibly be
complacent about it. I do not want
to injure anybody's {eelings. The
House would take it from me that I
am speaking with a full sense of res-
ponsibility about these matters. We
know the philosophies, the ideologies,
the different passions and emotions
which are oprevailing over large
groups of people. and as I said. this
Act is not directed towards any poli-
tical party; it is directed only
against one and no other object,
namely, that the purpnzes for which
preventive detention is permitted
under the Constitution should be
always keot in view and those our-
poses should be achieved.

Now in the Select Committee one
atlempt was made to restrict the
operation of the Bill. T make no
insinuations of any kind. but the
House would rather be surprised to
hear that under the Constitution
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preventive detention may be used for
szveral purposes and notably among
them is the preservation of public
order, the preservation of essential
supplies and the preservation of
friendly relations with foreign
nations. An attempt was made—I
imagine it is also made in the dissent-
ing minute—that all those shall be
cut out; there should be preventive
detention directed only to two purpo-
ses and nothing else, namely, the
security of the state and the defence
of India. There should be no pre-
ventive detention for preservation of
public order; there should be no pre-
ventive detention even for the stopp-
ing of anti-social activities. compris-
ed in that description in the Constitu-
tion, namely, the preservation of
essential supplies and essential ser-
3.;1gl:;es. They said: “We do not want
i

I will not say who sponsored that
particular amendment. The House
will gather it when the amendment
comes before it—we say that it is no
good saying that we want the Preven-
tive Detention Act to continue on the
statute book, but we want all the
relevant and more important pur-
poses to be cut out. Anyway the
Select Committee came to the conclu-
sion that two years was about the
minimum period for which this Pre-
ventive Detention Act should continue
on the statute book. I submitl that it
takes a lot of time, enormous parlia-
mentary time. The House is here; the
Goverrment is responsible to the
House of the People. The Constitu-
tion says so and there is nothing to
prevent the Members of tie House—
the House as a whole—moving a re-
solution at any time they like, that in
the opinion of the House. the Act
should be repealed and through that
resolution to convey the opinion of che
House. after six months, after 12
months or after 18 months or at any
time and I am sure that if there is
any indication of such an opinion,
namely, if the Opposition of the day
should like the matter to be discussed
by means of a resolution. I imagine
facilities would be given for the as-
certainment of the opinion of the
House. but to have a discussion about
ten days here and five days there and
year after year is not desirable.
Therefore., the first thing is two
years.

The second point that was consider-
ed was. who should have the right
to take the initiative. The Central
Government, no objection; Stale Gov-
ernment, no ohjection. but the whole
crux of the discussion lay on the
clause as to whether the district
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magistrates _ and additional district
magistrates—not every additional dis-
trict magistrate, but only those addi-
tional district magistrates, who are
specially empowered in that behalf by
the Staite Government—may be entitl-
ed to take action. It was said that
the district magistrates are—I put it
colloguially—an  untrustworthy iot.
And it was said that they should not
be entrusted with these enormous
powers and therefore it should be cut
out. On the one hand, the very pur-
pose of the Preventive Detention Act
is to see to it. among other things,
that anti-social activities are oput an
end to. that essential supplies and
essential services are not interfered
with unduly. And on the other hand
is thiz plea that there should be
delay.

The House would remember that
our district magistrates are not pett
officials, 1 am more familiar wit
Uttar Pradesh. We have got now a
population there of 620 lakhs, all
divided into 52 districls, and there
are altogether 52 district magistrates.
Each district magistrate, on an ave-
rage, therefore. looks after about 20
lakhs of people. In the course of his
administrative duties he looks after
the administration of the district, and
the other laws—what are called nor-
mal laws. the Criminal Procedure
Code and many other administrative
Acts—give to him., in  emergencies,
great powers to act He can direct
the Superintendent of Police to arrest
people on suspicion whenever there
is a question of commission of any
offence. He can—even magistrates of
the first class can—issue orders ban-
ning meetings and so on and so forth.
Now, to think that a district magis-
trate cannot bas trusted to talte action
under this Act. and for a very limited
number of davs—I shall come to :hat
—seems to me to be an argument based
on  bypersensitiveness. I  suggest
again that ii is really not intended to
make them have more power but to
avoid any hampering or obstruction
of the proper working of the Acl
For instance there are many districts
even in Uttar Pradesh, and I know in
Orissa with which also I am familiar,
where for long distances, hundreds of
miles. there are no communications.
In Orissa there are not even roads in
some places. Or you take for ins-
tance Rajasthan. Bikaner, Jaisalmer
and places on the border. Situations
may develop ai any time. Violent
speechss mav be delivered. There
may be incitement to wviclence. And
the disiriet mmagistrate, if we hold
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him responsible, must act then and
there.

The amendment that was suggested
was: no, no, he must report. And
there was a very touching confidence
displayed in the ability—I take it the
judicial ability, administrative abili-
ly and impartiality—of the Home
Minister everywhere that he can be
trusted to pass very fair orders. He
became a sort of Lord Chief Justice,
he was not a part of the administra-
tion for that purpose. And, therefore,
the argument was that the district
magistrate should report to him; the
situation may be there but the district

_magistrate should report to him, re-

port all the materials to him, and
wait. The Home Minister might be
away on tour, unfortunate individual.
He may not be at headquariers.
There may be riots going on, but no,
no, you must wait. I suggest that
the Select Committee was quite justi-
fied in saying that this was not the
proper course to adopt.

I want to revert once again to
additional district magistrates. I do
not know about other Provinces.

"Hon. Members will forgive me if 1

am wrong. I am only acquainted
with three of them, as I said, among
the Par: A States, namely Utlar
Pradesh. Bengal and Orjssa. The
additional district magistrate every-
where is a senior officer. He is not
an ordinary magistrate. He is really
there as a sort of—and that is why
he is so styled—an additional d¢i=irict
magistrate. And he exercises in the
branches of work entrusted to him al-
most equal authority with the district
magistrate. Then there is this addi-
tional care that it is only that addi-
tional district magistrate that may
be selected or specially empowered in
that behalf by the State Government,
who will exercise these powers.

The House would also rememboar
that in many States there is separa-
tion of judicial and executive func-
tions, for instance in Hyderabad.
The district magistrate is in charge
of the judicial administration, and the
person who is in charge of the execu-
called the
collecior. I am told that in some
other States also the district magis-
trate, where there has been a separa-
tion of judicial and executive fune-
tions, has only judicial functioas.
So zlve have got to bear that also in
mind.

Then comes

another important
change.

If the district magistrate
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intervenes and passes an order. for-
merly, under the Act of 1951, he had
barely to report for information of
the State Government—ijust for infor-
mation. And the State Government
might or might not intervene. Very
likely the State Government might
think that there would be the Advi-
sory Board, so let the orders stand.
Now we have made a very salutary
and important change. We made it
in the Bill, and we have altered it 2
little in the Select Committee alsc.
The distriet magistrate. as the Bill
had been framed, was directed to re-
pori the matter at once to the State
Government with all relevant papars
bearing on tne necessity for making
the order, and the papers must in-
clude the grounds for detention. And
the State Government must approve,
expressly approve, the order within
fifteen cays. There the wvenerable
Home Minister would come on the
scene. Objection was taken to this—
look at it—that. the district magistrate
might suppress material. The Bill as
framed says that he should only send
papers bearing on the necessity for
making the order—very punctilious.
The Select Committee said: very good,
it w=zs never the intention that he
would send half the papers and not
send the other half. So the change
has been made that the district magis-
trate should, along with the grounds
of detention, send all the relevant
papers bearing on the matter—both
ways, this way and that way—and I
am sure that if by that time, within
the five or seven days, the detenu has
already submitted his representation,
the magistrate will send that repre-
sentation also. So we get there.

Then came the period. Some one
said it should be three days; some one
saig it should be seven days. In
the Select Committee I ventured to
suggest that the district magistrate
will send it at once. He may send it
within five days or seven days. But
you must give the State Government
time to consider. They said that it
may be considered by the Secretary,
by anybody, by the Deputy Secretary,
by the Under Secretary. 1 venture
to say that when the phrase used is
State Government, it may be taken for
granted that the matter will be dis-
posed of by some Minister, either the
hief Minister or the Home Minister,
| do not know. because in different
States there are different official des-
criptions. Sometimes. the Home
Minister is called the Police Minister;
sometimes, the Home Minister may be
called by =omeo other designation.
But, T am sure that every State Gov-
ernment wiil see to it and us a

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendment) 5006
Bill

matter of course, it might be made’
clear by  official instructions, that
whenever a reference is received from
a district magistrate, that reference
will be considered and disposed of
and action taken by him expressly
approved in the name of the Central
Government and on its behalf by
some Minister and not by some Secre-
iary, either Chief Secretary or Deputy
Secretary or Under Secretary. The
period was reduced. I _was not very
keen about it. But, out of considera-
tion for the hon. Members who put
forward that view: I said, very well,
reduce it from 15 to 12 days. Here
the situation is, either you get the
order expressly approved within 12
days or the man is off. I submit that
no more reasonable course can be
taken. Do not let us be very tender
for law breakers or prospective law
breakers. During the course of the
discussion one hon. Member, I remem-
ber. referred to the people who remain
behind the screen and direct others to
take action, to lead processions, to
breax the law. Some action has got to
be taken. If those gentlemen remain
there for four five or six days. no harm
will be done. That is about 12 days.

Then comes the next stage. In the
Bill it was said that as soon as the
State Government makes an order on
its own motion or aporoves an order
of the district magistrate. it should
send a report of it. I remind the
Housze, for the information of the
Ceniral Government!, because I do not
want the Central Government to come
very much into the picture. The pri-
mary responsibility for maintaining
law and order or peace an: tranguility
and the continuance of essential sup-
plies and everything else is that of the
State Governments. I do nct want to
interfers with that. I do not want to
take it over. Nor do I want to have
a sort of a parallel Advisory Board set
up here. Please remember that while
the State Government is communicat-
ing for the information of the Central
Government all these orders, simul-
taneously the papers will go also be-
fore an Advisory Board. We do not
want to hamper the consideration of
the Advisory Board by a parallel con-
sideration here. I am not talking of
exceptional and very rare cases.
Leaving that aside. the normal proce-
dure is that the papers come to the
Central Government merely for the
purpose of information so that we may
keep a record. we might not gather
from the newspapers as to which per-
son has been detained or not detained.
and we might have accurate official
information as to what happens. In-
cidentally I might also say. while we
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are discussing this question of un-
authorised or improper detention, that
the House would recollect that the
Goverament in every State and here
is continuously, so to say, on the
defence before the Legislature. There
is the short notice question, there is
the motion for adjournment. there is

the long notice question. Whenever:

any person is detained by any district
magistrate or State Government, it is
open to any Member of the House here
or the State Legislature to raise this
matter immediately by way of a ques-
tion and ask, why that man was de-
tained. Every Government would be
extra-careful to see that the order
made is an order justified by the cir-
cumstances of the case.

Mr. Speaker: I may just make one
observation hers so that there may
not be any mi: understanding. It is
not in resoect every detention that
a question or m:tion can be permitted
in this House. It is only in the State
Legislatures that that may be per-
mitted, except in cases where the
order is made by the Central Govern-
ment.

Dr. EKatjn: I beg your pardon.
When I said House of the People, I
wanted to include State Legislatures as

well: Legislature here and the Legisla- -

tures in the States. If it is an order
by tkz Central Government, the matter
can come up here. There is a State
Legislature everywhere and they are
very much zlive to the importance of
this matter.

Then, we come to the Advisory
Board. In the original Act it was pro-
vided that the matter must go before
an Advisory Board within a period of
six weeks. We wanfed to shorten the
period and expedite disposal. That
period has been reduced from six
weeks to 30 days. Further more,
there is the constitution of the Advisory
Board. There is a direction laid down
in the Constitution namely that it
must consist of three classes of eligible
persons; either sitting High Court
Judges or retired High Court Judges
or persons who are qualified to be
appointed as High Court Judges.
Under the third category, you can
appoint advocates of ten years' stand-
ing; you can appoint Judges who are
qualified to become High Court
Judges. I circulated a listi of the
members of the Advisory Boards in
the different States two months ago.
You would find that in many States
the Advisorv Board consists either of
High Covrt Judges in toto, or at least
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one or in several States, there are two
High Court Judges. In some smaller
States, there are people who are quali-
fied to become Judges. A wish was
expressed that there must be a senior
man and he must be a High Court
Judge. We thought, very well, we
will nfake a change to that effect. The

-Select Committee has recommended

that the Chairman of an Advisory
Board should either be a sitting High
Court Judge or an individual who has
been a High Court Judge. The object
I had in my mind was to ensure that
the Chairman was a man mature in
age, mature in learning and mature in
experience, and you get that by having
either a retired High Court Judge or
a sitting High Court Judge. It seems
to me that a High Court Judge on re-
tirement does not become merely
by retirement ralleable to any
external influence. It would be
almost libel tfo say so. I know
many  and every High Court
Judge is an embodiment of integrity
and judicial honesty. So, that change
has been made. The remaining two
members, in the terms of the constitu-
tion, may be sitting or retired, or
persons qualified to be High Court
Judges,

Then. Sir, T made that suggestion
myself. I said: “We have got these
part C Statcs, smal! units. There are
no High Court Judges there, and it
would be very difficult to have the
Chairman as a High Court Judge for
the mere reason that there is no High
Court.” £: the felect Committee has
suggested that in regard to Part C
States, the Central Government, in
consultation with the State Govern-
ments, may reconstitute the Advisory
Board so that each Advisory Board of
each Part C State may have a High
Court Judge of a neighbouring State
as its Chairman. I suggest that that
shows an anxiety on our part to see
to it that the Advisory Board is a
real, functioning and completely inde-
pendent body.

Then comes the period, and what is
to come before the Advisory Board.
The House would recollect that beginn-
ing from 1950 in the first Act that was
introduced, the Advisory Board came
into the picture only when an order
was made against persons for anti-
social activities—hoarders, profiteers,
blackmarketeers, and also for persons
who wanted to interfere with commu-
nications, essential supplies—excepting
that there was no recourse fo an Ad-
visory Board whenever public order
was endangered. Last year a change
was made and every case was to go
to the Advisory Board, but it wos sald
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that the Advisory Board would decide
the case on paper, it may send for a
person detained if it thought neces-
sary. Now, we went further this year
on our own accord, and we said if
the detenu expresses a desire that he
would like to be heard and should like
to make his representations personally
before the Advisory Board, well, he
should be entitled to go. I thought to
myself that this was a great privilege
given, and a great improvement. In
the Select Commi‘tee and during the
debate in this House, there was a
great discussion upon it, and they said
there must be a lawyer, legal repre-
sentation, and the right to summon wit-
nesses, examine and cross-examine
them. Now, 1 suggest once again that
an allowance of this description. I
mean if we were to allow any provi-
sion of this description, it will be
totally destructive of the Act for a
variety of reasons, and one reason [
may say at once is: if you do so. then
why should a detenu have the bene-
fit of the service of three High Court
Judges, retired. qualified or sitting.
It is an expensive proposition. Send
it to an honorary magistrate. He will
ear the witnesses, examine, cross-
examine and finish. It is a great pri-
vilege to have your case examined,
simply because it is a case of preven-
tive detention, by three ollcers, judi-
cial officers, highest in the land. “No.
no”, they said “we must have exami-
nation and cross-examination”.

Now, my next remarks, one or lwo
-—there are many lawyers here—might
probably cause disapproval, perhaps
even resentment. [ am a lawyer my-
self and an advocate, I will not say of
some standing, at least of some stand-
ing in point of years, and I have said
over and over again—if my_ hon.
friend wants to quote me again. I shall
send him the book—that the best art
of advocacy consists—I came to this
conclusion—in the advocate keeping
himself completely behind the priso-
ner, and not arguing the case at all
I tell you it is a great mistake by
which we orofit of course—I am not
talking of legal rulings, legal discus-
sions in the Houses and rulings and
9 AM.
precedents of America, Australia,
Germany, England or anywhere. Full
Bench ruling or High Court rullnz. I
am talking of pure facts. My
rience has been this. Mr. Chatterjee
said that he was ashamed of me when
he heard it, but I will repeat it again
because it is my conclusion.

_Shri N. C. Chatterjee: It ig all
right. We shall have our say.

Dr. Katju: The moment a Judge
sees the seat of an advocate or a law
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yer by the side of the accused vacant,
he becomes suspicious,

Shri 5. 8. More (Sholapur): Is it not
derogatory to the judiciary?

Mr. Speaker: That is his opinion:

Dr. Katju: The Judge becomes sus-
picious. I have seen that and ihe
wisdom of our law-makers provides
far it. You, Sir, would recoilect that
there is a section in the Criminal Pro-
cedure Code which says that every
magistrate and every sessions judge
of a criminal trial. even though there
be a galaxy of legal talent before him,
must examine the accused personally
in regard to every circumstance ap-
pearing against him. I think it is .
section 342 of the Criminal Procedure
Code. It says when all the prosecution
evidence has been adduced, the Judge
must solemnly say to the prisoner at
the bar, “Now. what have you got to
say? Guilty or not guilty?" He zays
“not guiity”. Then: “What have you
got to say about this circumstance ap-
pearing against you? Such and such a
witness has said this against you.
What have you got to say?” It covers
pages. And there are manry rulings of
every High Court! which say that if
this examination is perfunctory, the
whole trial is vitiated and there might
either bte a retrial or.there might be
an acquittal on that very basis. Now,
why i: it so provided? Because the
Judges think and the legislators think
that the Judge should like to have a
look at the accused when he is eitner
denying fzcts or not denying facts.

I venture to repeat again here that
it will be doing a positive disservice
to the detenu—I speak with a sense of
responsibility, not as a Minister, but
as an Advocate—to make him go be-
fore the Advisory Board accompanied
by a lawyer. If the chances of the
Advisory Board of releasing him were
50 per cent. they would diminish to
five per cert. if the lawyer goes. You
may take it from me, in spite of what
all the jurists and the lawyers may
say. Because, please remember there
are three Judges. There is no rourt
atmosphere there. A lawyer. in orier
to function-—a pleader, a vakil or an
advocate—requires a Judicial atmos-
phere. He reguires the Evidence Act
at his elbow. He requires the right to
object—"1 object to "this guestion, it
is relevant, it is irrelevant”—and there
is cross-examination and there is cita-
tion of authority and so on and so
forth. But look at these three Judges
sitting across the table. No publicity.
Then t:e poor lawyer must feel him-
self completely at sea. What has he
te ray? There is nobody to clap for
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him or report him. I sometimes think
that judicial work and arrears would
‘be diminished by ten per cent. if there
were no reporters in the law courts. I
‘will not proceed further on this line,
but this question of lawyer represen-
— tation is not a veritable boon,

And secondly. please consider what
is the essence of preventive detention?
It is not a one-pointed precise occur-
rence. It is not a trial for murder:
“on such and such a date at eleven
o'ciock three people came and shot”,
or whether this document is a forgery
or not. It is something spread over.
1 have seen files where it has bren
stated “On such and such a day wou
made such and such a speech; another
speech you made on such and sueb a
day, you were doing this for the last
three or four months: from all tnis.
the inference is that ii vou are uof
detained you would indulpe in some
activities which may be prejudicial to
a variety of things”. You require a
man of commonsznse to look iuta all
that material, and there is no need for
a cross-examination, Please remem-
ber also this. The Advisory Board
consisting of these three competent
persons meet him, and as the standing
Acts says, they may hear the accused,
ithey may call for all information which
* they think fit, from anybody and even
the Government to whom they can say
“Supply this” or that”. It is on this
whole material that they come to a
decision. Nothing is concezled from
them. nothing can ke kep! sacret irom
them. It is true that a State Govern-
ment may keep away confidential sec-
‘rei papers on grounds of importance
from the detenu. but they cannot do so
in the case of the Advisory Board.
Someone said “Supposnz th« demand is
not complied with., what wii! hapoen?”
My answer to that is very simple. If
1 were a member of the Advisery
Board and if the Government do not
supply me the information that I re-
guire, there is no aquestion of 'y
fighting with them. I would only say
that “I shall release the accused, T do
not confirm the order of detention, be-
cause the information that you do not
send is very likely to be of some bene-
fit to the accused, and therefore you
are keeping it back from me". The
case will then be finished and become
all blank. So there can be no Govern-
ment, -State or Central which would
dare to refuse the information to the
Advisory Board, when that s required
by them. It is open very likely to the
Advisory Board to say: “We should
like to have such and such a
person before us, not as a witness, not
for examination or cross-examination,
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but we should just like to see that
man for dburselves”.

There is a general idea that the
Advisory Boards are purely nominal
bodies which do nothing, and are just
some sort of rubber-stamping
machines, We looked into these
figures—I supplied them to the mem-
bers of the Select Committee. When
Sardar Patel's Act, the first Preventive
Detention Act was passed, cases did not
use to go before the Advisory Board.
and when the previous Parliament
amended the Act last year, there was a
huge carry-over, and we found from
the figures that the Advisory Board
during the 18 months—beginning from,
I think, 22nd February 1950 to 31st
May 1951, perhaps—examined alto-
gether 4400 cases and released about
1200 persons. in about 28 per cent. of
the cases, and confirmed the order of
detention in about 72 per cent. of the
cases. What is the inference from
this *hat I draw’ The inference is
that the Advizory Board acts in a sort
of judicial caacity. and they have got

-plenty of material before them on

which they can form a judgment. 1f
you were to look into the satistics of
any appellate court, High Court, or the
court of the district and sessions judge,
you would notice that the number of
successful cases is not more. It is
something like 15, 20 or 28 or 30 per
cent. Similarly here. the fact thal iu
a large number of cases. the orders
werg confirmed would go to show that
the State Governments were acting
with great discretion and even the dis-
trict  magistrates were acting with
caution, On an e<amination of the
entire material. in about 28 per cent of
the cases, very likely they may have
thought “This man has been in deten-
tion for five or six weeks, let him go
now"”, or that “there was no justification
for the detention order”. Therefore, I
suggest that the Advisory Board plays
a very Iimportant role, its Chairman-
ship has been strengthened. and-care
has been taken in this Bill that the
duration within which a case should go
before the Board should be minimised.
In this way, the papers must be sent
to the Advisory Bosrd within 30 days.
It is open to the Board to take two
months, Formerly they could take
only six weeks. The reason why we
had said two months was that they can
muke a very detailed examination of
the case, they may send for tke delenu
twice or thrice if they want to. So T
am hopeful that the Advisory Board
wyuld be able to come to a conclusion
within two months. and so the matter
would be settled by that time once and
for all.
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Then came the question of the period
of detention. We proposed .the maxi-
mum period as one year from the date
of confirmation of the order by the
Advisory Board. There were various
amendments, Someone said three
months. I considered that, with all
respect, as a joke. The Advisory
Board may say “the order is well justi-
fied, please release him after three
months.” Then some one said six
months. But the Bill orovides one
year. Please remember that one year
is the maximum period only. Afier
the Advisory Board ceases to function.
there comes into play section 13 of
the original Act. which authorizes both
the Central and the State Governments
to release any person if they so think
fit. During the last six months. the
State Governments have taken action
upon it. and I believe. more than a
thousand have been released. I can
speak here again from personal know-
ledga. and I can assure t:e House that
the case of every deteru is almost kxept
eonstantly under review. In the flist
olace it may sound as a sort of anti-
climax if I say that the State Govern-
ment did not want to keep him, be-
cause he is an expensive proposiiion
In Bengal [ think. they spend about
Rupees -arce to four on him per day.
It costs money to the State Government
and secondly apart from that, they do
not want to carry the odium. Why
should they? Then there are represen-
tations made, by hon, Members of the
Legislatur, by reiations, and friends
going to the Minister and saying
“Here is a verv innocent man, he jias
suifered enough”. Then there is sec-
tinn 14 which says that a detenu may
be released on parcle. Hundreds of
detenus are released on parole. So
the maximum period of deiention will
come into operation and become effec-
tive only for extremely serious cases.

Then after the expiry of the maxi-
mum period of detention, I tell vou
with great respect that we have taken
an extremely courageous step. I do
not think that manv State Govern-
ments wil. be happy about it, because
we have said “Now your detention
means a wash-out. all your past
records will not be loocked into. tney
may be looked into in comection
with what type of person vou are, but
for a fresh detention order. there must
be fresh material”. The House would
realise the importance of this on the
merits & " 2lsu in  connection with
another wspect we 1he case. When it
is said ‘hat the )l seeks to extend
the Pretventive (letention Aect for two
years toat ewii is minimi by the
fact that so far as any Individual
detenu is ropcernzd, no  detenu will
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remain in detention in spite of tae
continuance of the Act, for more than
12 months substantially or say 14
months. It does not matter to him
whether the Act remains on tne
statute-book .or not. He is going=o be
released.

I have covered almost the entire
picture and I want to ussure the House
once again that so far as this review
business is concerned, you may take it
from me that every State Government
reviews and I have no doubt tha: if
they so advise, the: would make it a
point to review ihem every three
months or six monins. Some attempt
was made to bring it again before the
Advisory Board. Now to ask the
Advisory Board to cxamine the case
again—what would be the material?
The detenu had been in jail. He says:
“Look at my conduct; it has been very
wonderfu'; T have been a very quiet,
decent and law-abiding citizen in jaii".
It is for the State Government, the
executive Government, o consider the
change in the political situation,
whether a particular detenu can Dbe
released without danger or cannot be
released without danger. To ask the
Advisory Board to take up the matter
again. to consider it again, would be
very unfair to the Advisory Board
and. therefore, we have not taken that
matter up.

Some attempt was made to say that
there should be provision of faiuily
allowances. Now that is a matter en-
tirely within the discretion of every
State Government. I know about the
State, wi.a whiech I am very familiar,
Bengal particularly. Such allowances
are granted in needy cases and it is
a matter entirely within the discretion
of the State Governments. I have ne
doubt that where there is considerable
hardship and any particular family is
in distress. they would pass suitable
orders. I cannot possibly lay down
any hard and fast rule for them and
I submit it to the House that you
would not do it in the Act itself. And
please remember that while for con-
victs of all types we have no s¥yT-
pathy, similarly for under-trials we
have no sympathy. I have seen
under-trials for eight months. {ten
months. So far as this preventive
Pusiness is concerned, either you say
that the Central Government or the
State Government are embarking
upon a course of tyranny and there-
fore there should be this extenuating
rircumstance—that they should soofien
their tyranny by giving something to
the dependants—or say that it 15 for
the prevention of crime that it is done
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and we must, therefore, leave it ts the
good sense and the discretion of every
Stnle Government to take. sui‘able
acuyn.

I imagine that I have covered the
entire field and nothing remains 1> be
dealt wita at this instant. There is just
one other provision which I wouid like
to refer to and then conclude. We
had this question before wus: what
about the people who are already
under detention? Now, I shali be
quite frank with the House.. During
the last three months there has been
a most intensive review by all State
Governments of old cases and very
few nf the old detenus still remain in
custody. And State Governments
have deliberately, after the most care-
ful consideration, I imagine, by the
Chief Minister, the Home Minister,
probably by the entire Cabinet, rome
to the conclusion that they cannot
possibly release some people To
insist that those people should be
released forthwith would be extremely
unfair to those State Governments.
Now, so far as those cases ara con-
cerned, the provision is that wnatever
may be the situation, such persons
must be released by the first day of
April 1953 or if there has been a
person who has been newly detained—
supposing someone was detained on
the 1st of February 1952—as to him it
is said, twelve months. He woulu be
released after the expiry of twelva
months from the date of the order of
detention. The result is that so far as
older cases are concerned, the deadline
is the 1st day of April 1953 and so
far as more recent cases are CoaCern-
ed, the deadline is the expury of
twelve months from the date of the
order of detention.

. This oractically covers the whola
amending Bill and I submit that it has
now become a very improved pizce of
legislation—I had almost said, a model
piece of legislation, but I will not say
that, it contains, if you accept the
principle, every possible precaution
that you can possibly think of. Safe-
guard No. one: If the district magis-
trate intervenes. 12 davs: safeguard
No. two: the State Government; safs-
guard No. three, the Advisory Board;
safeguard No. four, the right of ap-
pearance by tae person concerned. and
negative, protecting him from law-
yers. I seem to have made a hit.

Dr. Lanka Sundaram (Visakhapu'-
nam): You will get it back on the re-
bound.

Dr. Katju: ‘And strictly limiting the
period of detention. So far as the
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conditions in detention are concerned,
1 do not want to go into them. I will
just tell you the experience that I
had. I went to Murshidabad. Some
friends were in jail there. I :vent to
them. They were rather suliry to
begin with. But if you are deterinin-
ed to be friendly, no one can be sullry.
Threfore, 1 just talked to themn and
told them: *I have not come ta wis-
cuss with- you the policy underlying
this detention. That is not my con-
cern. That is for the Ministers. I
have come to ask you whether there
is anything in which I can help you".
This is what I saw, a big barrack--it
reminded me of my old days also.
Every cot furnished with a mosquito
net, a library of books, and four de-
tenus were entitled to have a news-
paper; there were about 20 or 25 nf
them, so there were about ten news-
papers or so; then pen, pencil, every-
body can write...
-

Sardar A. S. Saigal (Bilaspur): It
is tempting to the hon. friends opposite.

Dr. Katju: Then a daily allowance of
rupess three. As soon as you are de-
tained, you get an outfit allowance of
Rs. 240. It reminded me of Gover-
nors.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: Are you pre-
pared to exchange places?

Dr. Katju: That is what I saw. And
no one could go there. The poor
jailors said to me: “You had the
courage to come here”. So they were
completely at liberty, in that particu-
lar way. Then games were provided
—badminton, volley ball; about twelve
servants for cooking, kitchen, and
doctor—everything provided. I think
about two crores of people in Bengal
have not got the facilities which those
people have there, That is
about the so-called hardships
and all that. Interviews, letters and
everything else. Of course, I did not
discuss with them the question of
policy, but they looked pretty—shall
1 say—friendly, or whatever it is, as
you I!ke,

1 confidently recommend to the
House, every section of the House, to
pass the Bill with their blessings.

Mr. Speaker: Motion moved:

“That the Bill further to amend
the Preventive Detention Act,
1950, as reported by the Joint
Committee, be taken into consi-
deration.”

5010 .
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Before we proceed with further dis-
cussion, I think, I must dispose of
some amendments about circulation of
the Bill as reported by the Joint Com-
mittee for eliciting public opinfon, or
recommittal of the Bill to the same
Committee. Now, as regards these
amendments I feel a difficulty. I am
not giving my ruling just now but I
am giving the ground on which I am
going to rule them out of order.
Before I do so, I should like to give
the hon. Members concerned a chance,
not to make long speeches but in a
very short statement to say as to why
these amendments should be held to be
in order. The matter is covered by
previous rulings starting from 1922.
I would take up only the last one on
this point and the principle enunciated
there is as follows. When an hon,
Member sought to move an amend-
ment for recirculation of the Bill or
recommittal this is what the Chair
said. It was my predecessor—I may
make it clear:

“T do nat think he quite appre-
ciates the ruling 1 laid down a
little while ago regarding a
motion for recommittal.”

—-both are placed on the same foot-
ing—

“It is the business of the Chair
to protect the House against dila-
tory motiong except where such mo-
ticus are rendered necessary either
by the manner in which a Select
Committee have handled the Bill
or by unforeseen circumsiances
arising since the Bill emerged
from the Select Committee......”

In that particular case this condition
was satisfied.

Now here, the Bill is coming before
the House so soon after the report of
the Committee that there is practi-
cally no case, there could not be any
case of unforeseen circumstances
having arisen since the Bill emerged
from the Committee, The only ques-
tion to be considered is: Was the Bill
50 handled in the Committee that the
hon. Members' points of view were
not considered, or have they no fur-
ther chances of bringing in their
points of view now before the House?
It is a very small point. I think the
Joint Committee toock a wvery long
time. The House gave instructions
specially to have amendments to all
sections, whether included in the
amending Bill or not, and even now
those hon. Members will have a chance
of moving their amendments. Of
course, I cannot say that whatever
they move will or will not be in order.
That is to be looked into when the
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individual amendment comes wup. ¥
should like, therefore. to know the
points of thes? hon. Members who
have tabled these amendments. Mr.
Vallatharas—has he to explain as to
why this Bill should be recommitted?

Shri Vallatharas (Pudukkottai): The
only reason that prompted me to table
this amendment is this. hon. Mem-
bers had brought to the notice of the
Government the extent of the abuses
committed by the officers who either
abused the detention order or caused
the arrest. There were several cases
in which persons were unnecessarily
arrested. As a matter of fact. after-
wards they were released by the Gov-
ernment themselves or by the Advisory
Board. But there was no check upon
thnse officers to prevent further
abuses. There is a clause in the last
section saying, “no suit will lie..." etc.
as a provision of immunity for those
officers. The abuses are committed
at the initial stage whatever the fate
of the detenu later on. And none of
these officers have been prosecuted for
such abuses,

Mr. Speaker: Order. order: I do not
want him to argue on those lines. The
only point is: Has the Select Com-
mittee in any manner so acted that
this Bill requires a recommittal or re-
cireulation? His point as he is de-
v2loping it seems to be that there are
certain things which he would have
liked the Select Committee to take
into . consideration. The points were
made in this House when the motinn
for reference to Select Committee was
being discussed. But it is a matter of
opinion: The Select Committee may
agree or may not agree.

Shri Vallatharas: But they have not
made any mention of it. If the
Select Committee had considered it
and come to some conclusion, I would
not have minded. It concerns the
people at large. My point is that indi-
vidual cases should be considered.

Mr, Speaker: Order, order. When
there was a debate in this House on
this Bill a large number of Members
wio were members of the Select Com-
mittee were present, It will not be a
quite correct presumption to say that
they had not considered the point
though there may not be any reference
to it—and a reference to it is not
necessary. 1 do not think he can be
said to have made out that point.

Shri Velayudhan (Quilon  cum
Mavelikkara—Reserved—Sch. Castes):
Sir, the way in which you have ex-
plained the scope of discussion of my
amendment makes me think that it is
so restricted that there is no point in
my saying anything more on that par-
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ticular subject. At the same time, 1
may point out to you that certain new
factors regarding preventive detention
have come up. In my State about 200
people were arrested last week, most
of them under the preventive deten-
tion legislation.

Mr. Speaker: After the Select Com-
mittee’s report?

Shri Velayudhan: I do not know for
certain—perhaps it might have hap-
pened during the time of the Select
Committee itself.

Mr. Speaker: Let him be sure as to
facts.

Shri Velayudhan: 1 am not sure of
the facts, but I would like to speak on
this. .. .

Dr. Eatju: May I, with your per-
mission, Sir, add one sentence on the
point of these officers acting...... ?

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. I am not
concerned at present with the merits
of the action of the officers. I am
concerned only with the admissibility
of {hese amendments. At this stage
we need not go into that gquestion.

Dr, Katju: I only wantel to state
what we did in the Select Committee.
That point was considered and the
Select Commiitee came to the conclu-
sion that seclion 15 of the Act protects
an oficer who only acts in good faith.
We considered that was quite sufficient.
1f there was any cificer who was act-
ing in bad failh he can be prosecuted.

Shri Seshagiri Rao (Nandyal): The
powers of Parliament o enact
the Preventive Detention Act are
derived from Lists I and II, but all
these  powers are circumscribed
under article......

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. He s
going into the merits. What I want to
know from him is this: Is he in a
position to show that the Select Com-
mittee acted in such a manner that
there is a case for recommittal of the
Bill to the Select Committee? That is
the point. Whet:er a particular point
is held in favour of an hon. Member
or not is immaterial, but the question
is whether the matter has been fully
considered.

Shri Seshagiri Rao: The Select Com-
mittee has of course amended the ex-
isting clause and said that within five
days the detenu must be supplied the
grounds. But there is one other
right which the delenu has under the
Constitution, namely. the opportunity
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to make a representation. There are
therefore two obligations, only one of
which. the Select Committee has dis-
charged. The other one has not been
considered at all.

Mr. Speaker: I do not think a case
has been properly made out for allow-
ing this dilatory motion.

Shri Veeraswamy (Mayuram—Re-
served—Sch. Castes): It was agreed
on the floor of this House that when
the Select Committee considers this Bill
it can make changes in the parent Act.
The hon. the Prime Minister said so.
But the Joint Select Committee did
not consider the parent Act of 1950.
Not even one clause of that Act seems
to have been taken into consideration.
T:erefore. in-my opinion, it is neces-
sary that this Bill should be circulated
for eliciting public opinion thereon.

Mr. Speaker: | am not concerned
with the merits. but from the Select
Committee report and the minutes of
dissent it appears clear that the main
Act was thoroughly gone into by the
Select Committee, Whether it agreed
with the views of the hon. Member or
not, it went into the parent Act.
Therefore, I do not see any ground
made out for allowing this dilatory
motion at this stage.

Shri Madhao Reddi (Adilabad): I
have also a motion for circulation. I
want to ask one question. Is it the
pleasure of the Chair to suspend rule
97(2) of the Rules of Procedure?

Mr. Speaker: I do not propose to
go out of the way. There is no occa-
sion, or subsiantial reason, for it.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee (Calcutta North-
East): [ also have a motion for circu-
lation. In the first instance. I submit
that you may be pleased to reconsider
your decision regarding interpretation
of rule 97(2), because I feel that
particularly in regard to motions of
this description it is fair to the House
that you interpret this rule as
liberally as you should. In the second
place, I think that the report of the
Joint Committee is a kind of docu-
ment which makes it imperative that
it should be circulated for eliciting
public opinion. This report is accom-
panied by as many as flve ininutes of
dissent and in regard to the point
which has been mentioned already
about the authorisation of the Joint
Committee to go into the parent Act,
it seems to me to be the case that as
far as the minutes of dissent are con-
cerned, the provisions of the parent
Act were not really gone into with
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that kind of seriousness which was
expected when the House by unani-
mous motion required the Select Com-
mittee lo go into the parent Act as
well. In the minutes of dissent also
there are so many very distinct, con-
crete and objective proposals made in
order {2 make this Act somewhat legs
objectionable than it is, and all those
suggestions, it seems, were simply
ruled out by the majority in the Joint
Committee.

Besides, the renort nf the majority
of the Committee is couched in such
terms that it shows a complete indif-
ference to the arguments advanced
with so much care in the minutes of
dissent by the represzniatives of diffe-
rent political parties as well as by
independent Members of Parliament.
In view of this particular character of
the report of the Joint Select Com-
mittee and in view of the directive of
the House whfch was so enthusiastically
acclaimed when the Prime Minister
intervened in regard to the discussion
of this proposition, I feel it is only fair
to the House as well as to the country
that the report of the Select Com-
mittee goes to the country for eliciting
public opinion. Let the people have
an opportunity of going into the argu-
ments made out by the dissenters
from the majority from different points
of view. Thereafter, I am sure Parlia-
ment will be in a position to under-
stand the real implications of the Bill
as it*is going to be passed at present.
I submit with all respect that the re-

port of the majority of the Joint
Select Cominittee has heen
drawn up not only without

due care for the interests of
i{he citizen but also without any real
understanding of the significance of
the measure which is under discussion.
The minutes of dissent show a very
wide. a very distinguished and a very
learned exposition of different points
which could have been incorporated in
the measure in order to make it less
pernicious than it is. In view of
that, it ought to be circulated for
eliciting public opinion.

Shri M. A, Ayyangar (Tirupati): I
was the Chairman of this Committee.
It is very wrong to say that we did
not consider any of the points that
were brought forward. We had been
in the habit of recording the minutes
of the proceedings from day to day
and next day they were circulated to
the members. In tiose minutes the
individual names of members who
sought to bring forward certain
amendments have also been noted. If
my hon. friend Mr. Hiren Mukerjee
means that merely because the whole
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Act has been sent to the Select Com-
mittee, therefore it is tantamount to
saying that every clause of that Act
according to his lights ought to be
amended, then the Select Committee
did not perform that function. Other-
wise, it only means that a chance was
given to the Select Commiltee and
to those Members who were anxious
to get even the parent Act amended
suitably to make representations there,
We did allow more than ample oppor-
tunity. There was not a single
gentleman there who ever raised an
objection that we were hustling
through. I am not letting out -a secret
when I say that I received encomiums
for the manner in which I conducted
the deliberations and they came from
all seetions. Therefore, no hon. Mem-
ber, to whichever party he may belong,
will say that ample opportunity was
not given. If you, Sir, permit these
minutes of the proceedings to be given
to such of the hon. Members as want
to read them—because it is supposed
to be an official document—they will

“mmediately find that not one of the

points that have been raised was not
noticed there but they were discussed
at length and threadbare. All these
hon. Members were there. Under
these circumstances, I submit this is
a dilatory motion,

Then again, Sir, you will please re-
member that only in cases where the
Select Committee has so modified the
Bill that 1t is necessary for the public
to know the reasons or the views of
Members of Parliament necessitating
the modification, the Select Commiitee
itself recommends thait such a Bill
may be circulated for eliciting public
opinion. We have made so many im-
provem=nts. Unless it is the desire of
my hon. friend that those improve-
ments should be lost and should be
once again removed from the original
Act. I do not =ee any reasan why this
Bill must go to the country at lacge.
This is a purely dilatory motion and
1 hope you will not allow it to be dis-
cussed. So far as amendments are
concerned, they can be tabled and the
House will have an opportunity to
consider them.

Shri 8. S. More: I was one of the
members of the Joint Select Com-
mittee. Of course, I can in fairness
say that we discussed almost all the
points. But there was one point in
which we did not receive the necessary
satisfaction and that point was ra‘sed
by Dr. Kunzru.

Mr. Speaker: Order. order. The
proceedings of the Select Commiitee
are supposed to be confidential and
the hon. Member should not mension
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any member’s name in connection
with any matter.

Shri 8. 8. More: Some of the
members of the Advisory Boards who
had gone into the different cases
ought to have been examined by the
Select Commitiee,

Mr. Speaker: Order, order. He is
re,fe;rrln_g now to some specific points
which, in his opinion, as also in the
opinion of some o'her Members, the
Select Committee did not take into
consideration to his satisfacticn,
meaning that they did not agree with
his conclusions. That is =omething
different from saying that the Select
Committee did not consider the points
at all. In fact the hon. Member
himself conceded that all the points
were taken into consideralion. His
point now appears to be that in cne
or two points the Committee did not
agree with his conclusions. That does
not make any difference so far as the
admissibility of this motion s
concerned.

Shri 8. 8. More: May I have an
opportunity to explain?

Mr, Speaker: That will be in {ne
course of the debate. If on a relevant
amendment discussion is allowed that
point can be raised. The Deputy-
Speaker has already pointed out how
the motion is dilatory. The Select
Committee itself in the concluding
paragraph of its report says: “The
Committee think that the Biil has 1.0t
been so altered as to require circula-
tion”. There have been alterations:
but they are not material alterations.

I do not accept these motions to be
in order and the Bill will now be for
consideration before the House.

Shri M. 8. Gurupadaswamy (My-
sore): I have got an amendment.

Mr. Speaker: Which amendment?

Shri M. S. Gurupadaswamy: That
the Bill be withdrawn from the
House. ’

Mr. - Speaker : He can vote against
the Bill and give effect to his
amendment.

Dr. P. S. Deshmukh (Amravati
East) : May I rise to a point of crder?
In the minute of dissent appended to
the report of the Select Commitiee,
signed by Messrs. Sundarayya and
Gopalan—it has probably escaped
¥your notice—this Aet has been
described in as many as four places
as a “black Act”. I do not know if
there are any insiructions so far as
the use of language in minutes of
dissent i3 concerned, but it will
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probably be as well for you lo lay
down certain rules and direct that
there should be a certain amount of
restraint observed in writing minutes
of dissent. I do not wish to refer to
any other passages some of which,
at any rate, are rather strongly
worded. I do not know whether it
is prooer.

The reason why I am raising this
point of order al this moment is that
I do not believe there are any
directions laid down so far and it
would be as well to do so now so that
there might not be instances of similar
nature later on. It may be permissible
to call a piece of legislation as
“a black Act” in the course of a
speech in the House. Whether some
hon. Members could be allowed the
use of such language in the course
of a minute of dissent is a matter for
examination and it would probably be
necessary to check those tendencies
at this early stage.

Incidentally, I would also like to
draw your attention to the fact that
one of the members of the Select
Committee has really appended a rote
of assent and called it a note of
dissent. I refer to the minute of
Diwan Chaman Lal. How far that is
permissible should also be examined.
These are the two points which I
would like to bring to the attention
of the House.

Mr. Speaker: 1 have not gone
through the dissenting minutes with
the purpose of finding out what
expressions in it are parliamentary or
unparliamentary. The hon. Member
has made a point which. T agree.
requires consideration and he may
invite my attention to other unparlia-
mentary expressions that may be
contained. not only in the minutes of
dissent. but even in the report of the
Committee and T shall be glad ic
consider and see whether 1 should
expunge them or not.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: May I at this
stage rise on a point of order? 1 find
that Rule 97(1) says:

“After the presentation of the
final report of the Select Com-
mittee on a Bill, the Member in
Charge may move:

(a} that the Bill. as reported
by the Select Committee, be taken
into consideration:

Provided that any inember of
the House may cbject to its being
so taken into consideration. if a
copy of the report has not.been
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made available for the use of
members for two days, and such
* gbjection shall prevail. unless the
Speaker allows the report o he
taken into consideration.”

We got this report on the night of
the 20th July and two full days have
not passed. This being a document
with so0 many dissenting minutes, il
certainly requires a good deal! oi
diges:ion,

Mr. Speaker: 1 had that rule in
mind and. in fact, in the Business
Advisory Committee, I believe this
point was touched. Then Members
wanted to be assured that they would
have sufficient time for  tabling
amendr.:cnts when the House proceeds
with “fe clause by clause reading
The point of the rule is that they mu:st
have sufficient time to table amenc-
ments. I said that if the Business
Advisory Committee was agreed—Ilct
me here repeat that that Commiitee
consists of Members representing ail
sections in the House—I was prepared
to waive notice under that rule and
the discussion might take place This
is being done with the agreement of
all sections of the House and, there-
fore. the point of order really does net
arise.

Let us now proceed with the further
disrussion.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: 'When the
Prime Minister made his announce-
ment on the floor of the House that
the Joint Committee was going tn
consider not merely the few ciauses
of the Bill, but that the prineipal Act
and every section and claure of the
Act would be oper for consideration
we thought, it was a genuine gesture.
You know, Sir, that the Members of the
Opposition were very reluciant to gn
to the Select Committee. Bul that
statement of the Prime Minister
dispelled to a large extent (he
atmosphere of suspivion snd we wenl
there with high hopes. We thought.
not merely that the few clauses of
the Bill would be considered there.
but that there would be a dispassionate
consideration of this, much-criticised
and retrograde features of the 2&ct,
and thai we shall be «ble to purge
this Act of its very .msatizfactocy
provisions.

Our hopes were frustrated. 1° seems
to me that there was somebody mere
powerful than the Prime Minisier of
India—possibly the Whip, we 4o not
know, We eflected some very mincr
amendmen’s in the Bill, but wlen we
came to the Act, I am torry to say
that each and evory one cof the
suggestions for improvement and
amendment was regularly  turnzd
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down. There was somebodv working
behind. Not one, not even Dr.
Kunzru's amendmeant, nnt even
Acharya Narendra Deva's, nor ours
was accepted.

I say in all seriousness that this
House is on its trial; the Select Com-
mittee was on its trial; this Paria-
ment, the first real Parliamert. elected
on the basis of adult suffrsge, is on
its trial. We thought we would be
able to face the country by -oing
some-hing to purge this pernicious Act
of some of its most unsa:isf: ~tory and
retrograde provisions We ploced
before the Committes some rzazonable
suggestions made by the Civil
Liberties Union. Firsily the All-India
Civil Liberties Union has been point-
ing out that it is nothing but a parody
and farce of a hearing. There is
hardly any hearing.

What is it that we are fighling for?
It is not fair for the Home Minister to
say “You are trying to sabotage and
torpedo this Act”. It is not our in-
tention. We went there #s responsible
men to get some facts.

Shri P. T. Chacko (Meenachil): On
a point of order, Sir. Is the kan.
Member in order in referring to what
all took place in the Joint Select Comn-
raittee? He is giving even the names
of certain persons.

Mr. Speaker: He is not going. so
far as I am able to see. into the de-
tails of the matter but is only
generally describing the position that
they tabled a number of amendments
and none of them was accepiled. I

‘think he can legitimately make that

grievance. He will not go into the
details of it. He knows it. I believe.

Shri C. R. Narasimhan (Krishna-
giri): Can he characterize iv 5% a
farce?

Mr. Speaker: e should nol have
done it, But I do not think the
word is unparliamentary altogether.

Shri N. C, Chatterjee: What is it that
you are objecting to? We as respon-
sible and reasonabl'e men thought that
possibly on the flnor of the House,
with people sitting in the public gal-
leries, it will not be proper to expect
that the Home Minister would give
us all the detai'ls which would
justify the rontinuance of this much
criticized measure. Look at the
Statement of Objects and Reasons.
The hon. Minister says:

“The primary reason for the en-
actment of this legislation was to
protect the country against acti-
vities intend to subvert the Consti-
{ution and the maintenance of law
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and order or to interfere with the
maintenance of supplies and ser-
vices essential to the community.
Attempts to do so, though consi-
derably reduced in tempo, have
nut ceased and it is considered
essential that the powers confer-
red by. the Praventive Detention
Act should be continued.”

We wanted facts. We expected
some figures. I am not using the
language of law, but the onus, ine
purden was clearly on the Govern-
ment, on the hon. Minister to make
vut a case where this kind of thLing

was going on, where subversive
activities were going on. Therefore
we wanted some material. We press-
ed for some materials. None was

given. We got no facts, no figure:. In
the placid atmosphere of the Sclect
Committee we expected some iangible
evidence. Nothing was forthcoming.
Therefore we were handicapped. We
thought that as this Parliament was
on its trial we should be able to do
something really to bring it in confor-
mity with the spirit of the times. What
15 it that we are fighting for? Wauare
continually saying that it is against
the postulates of a civilized system
of government to d=tain a man wiithout
trial, not to give him & real charge-
sheet. not to give him adequale op-
portunity of h=aring.

I appeal to this House even today,
1 appeal to Par}iament to consiger.in
the year of Grare 1952, in Independoent
and Free India, under this Republiran
Constitution of which we are groud,
with the Thigh-soundinz Preambls
guaranteeing social justice and in-
dividua! I’berty. is it not far atleast
that we should have ‘hnze safezuards.
those privilegez given to the dstenus
which they enjoyed in war tirae un-
der Pepgulation 18B of the Defenve of
Rzalm Regulations? That was the
main stand we took. We were press-
ing. we pressed arn amendmeni which
stood in the name of Pandil Thakur
Das Bhargava, That was nothing im-
proper, nothing extraordinary. The
amendment was in these words, that
the detenu should be given... ..

Mr. Speaker: Order. order. He
should nnt refer to the detailed ainend-
ments. which amendments came in
whose name and so on. It is not‘in
order to refer to those proceedings of
the Select Committee. Al tne most
he van say¥ that an amendwment of
this type came up.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: Very well,
Sir. That amendment was already
before thi= House. That had bEeen
circulated. '

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendment) 5028 °
Bill.
10 A

We pressed that there should be
given three essential attribules, name-
iy. a fair hearing, formulation of the
charge, and an independent julii-
riary and a right to  plead
the case by counse! or lawyers ol ike
choice of the detenu. It is an amaz-
ing statement, 1 have great respect
for my hon. friend Dr. Kalju. 1 did
not say I was ashamed of him I tuld
him I am amazed at his statement and
at this stage of my life I kave tonear
his plea: *“For Heaven's sake c¢o not
give the detenu a lawyer. that will
finish him”. Come with me {5 the
Supreme Court. There are Judges
who are very anxious to try to goout
of their way to help the detenu. No
datcnu  except possibly cne in w
thousand can present his case prover-
ly, even if the Judges are willing,
sympathstic, attentive and anxious to
help. The greatest tragedv—I appeal
to your experience, 1o the experience
of every lawyer Member of {his
House—the greatesi tragedy tha: can
befall a man is to be a litigant nicad-
ing his own case befere any tribunal!
After all it is a tribunal. You may call
it a quasi-judicial tribunal, but it is
after all a tribunal. We have got cn
it a High Court Judge and two other
Judges, There are three Judges. Is
it possible. is it feasible, is it practic-
able that a detenu will be able to put
forward hiz defence properly? It is
impossible. We know it cannot be
done. Go to any High Court or to
the Supreme Court. Any day when
habeas ecropus vetitions are heard, tae

judges find the drtenus impulsive,
they have no serse of relevancy.
materiality, cogency. they do not

understand that hearsay evidence camw
not be adduced. I am not thinking of
technicalities of law. But there are
fundamental maxims which must govern
all proceedings where some kindof a
semblence of justice is maintained.
The Judges have said “You better
stop. we will get a counsel” and that
counsel would plead for him. Is it
possible that before three Judges the
detenu—some of them may be illiterate
or may have no training in 'aw-— will
be able to oput forward his case? T do
enter my emphatic caveat against the
statement made by the hon. the Home
Minister that the lawyer will be a
nuisance, a handicap and will spcil the
detenus. He will do nothing of the
kind., It is his choice. If he says that
he canno’ himself do it. for Heaven's
sake give him this elementary right,
the right which you gave fo a° mur-
derer, a saboteur, a traltor to the
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country, to defend himself through a
man of his own choice. That is all
that we are pleading for.

[MR. DEPUTY-SPEAKER in the Chairl

In England they did it. Mr. C. K
Allen, one of the greatest authorities,
who was himself a member of the
Advisory Board in England, said that
even in England it is impossible for
the detenus to really represent their
caseg before the Advisory Board. The
language is this. I am quoting from
Mr. C. K. Allen's book Law and
Orders:

“Speaking from considerable ex-
perience of the examination of
conscientious objectors, the present
writer- can say without hesitation
that legal aid may make all the
difference to that large class of
persons who are inarticulate or
discursive and quite unable to
Dpresent their own cases; and this
must be so however eminent, ex-
perienced or sympathetic the ex-
amining tribunal may be.”

We know that the Home Minister
has been good enough to accept one
suggestion of ours, that there shall be
a High Court Judge. Of course he has
added an ex-Judge also. I am in diffi-
culty in saying anything against
ex-Judges of High Courts!

Dr. Katju: I have got very high
opinion of ex-Judges.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: But what I
am pointing out is this. You have these
Judges. But even there you
know Sir Walter Monckton was the
Chairman of the Board in England.
And Sir William Norman Birkett, one
of the greatest Judges England has pro-
duced, was Chairman of the Board.
And he says it is impossible for the
detenus to really represent Lheir cases.
Remember the standard of educativn,
the standard of literacy, the equipment
in public life and the best traditions
of England. Even there it is said
that the detenus cannot present their
cases, where the proceedings are con-
ducted in the English language. There
also, Advisory Boards have in case
after case stopped them and sent for
counsel.

One or two instances were appended
our minute of dissent. . . ..

Dr. Eatju: On a point of order, Sir.
1s not my hon. friend making a grave
reflection upon the judiciary thatthey
are unable to wunderstand the cases

ut the assistance of the Counsel?

Bhri N. C. Chatterjee: It is not a
Question of specific cases, What was
124 PSD,
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Dr. Katju doing for 40 years in the
different courts? -

'Dr. Eatju: 1 told you I ceased to
argu cases at the end of my career.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: It is a libel
on the Allahabad High Court and I
hope some lawyers here will protest
the Judges there. :

From the statements of responsible
Ministers in Parliament it will be seem
that the detenus are given [facilities
for the purpose of presenting their
cases. You have the statements with
you already.

“The English practice will be
seen from the statements of res-
ponsible Ministers in the British
House of Commons—Home Secre-
tary (October 31st, 1939)"—again
predecessor in office of Dr. Katju,
ex-Governor of Behngal.

Dr., Katju: I am sick of quotations

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: Because
théy are very inconvenient to you, 1
know. I quote:

“The Advisory Committee have
before them all the evidence which
is in the possession of the Secretary
of State. But the Advisory Com-
mittee call in any person who, in
their opinion, may be able to assist

in elucidati the matter with
which  the mmittee have 10
deal.”

We pleaded that at least the Ad-
visory Committees should have all the
materials which is in the - possession
of the Government. Even that was
not accepted. Then we said thzt the
Advisory Committee should be allow-
ed to call any person who in the opi-
nijon of the Judges may be able to
assist the Committee with which the
Committee have to deal. Solemnly
our friends in the Committee turmed
it down, Are you going to tell the

- people of India that you are putting

this Act on the statute book? In the
years 194142 when England was in
the throes of a terrific war, when her
existence was in danger and the
focundations of her State were in
jeopardy, when her cities and towns
were bombed, Sir John Anderson
cculd allow it; Sir Walter Monckton
could allow it; Sir Norman Birkett
could allow it: I ask what has the
poor detenu done? What crime did
he commit? When Congressmen were
detained, when lovers of ]ibertiv were
detained under the Criminal Law
Amendment Act and Regulation 3 of
1818, they were very loud in their pro-
testations; we were fighting for freedom
from political bondage and we wanted
to sweep away the existing repres-
sive laws in order to secure the fullesfy
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development of human personality.
Do not commit the mistake of think-
ing that you can eradicate or suppress
Communism by this kind of preven-
tive detention. The British imperialists
alsg thought that they would crush the
Congress through this Preventive De-
tention Act, but they could not doit.
They could not suppress the liberty
movement. You will also not be able
to do it. This is not the way to doit.

I have iny fundamental differences
with the comrades who are sitting
on the other side. But still I do not
think this is the way to eradicate
Communism. You are really giving
these people a handle; you are doing
the greatest disservice to India
acting in this manner. Look at the
Way you -are treating them. We were
then preaching that{ an independent
India will build up a real common-
wealth, a real republic, that justice
shall be done, where the frontiers of
despotism shall be pushed back, where
the frontiers of liberty shall be extend-
ed and there shall be no ong who shall
be deprived of liberty without trial,
without an opportunity to defend him-
self before an honest tribunal.

What does Dr. Katju say to that? He
is saying that “this is a model Bill”. It
is a wonderful Act. This is a wonder-
ful Bible which the Congress Govern-
ment has today brought out and they
are proud of it. I think they ought to
be ashamed of it. What is it that you
are going to say? I will give you
three Judges with one High Court
Judge or an ex-Judge but I will not
give you a lawyer. I wili not even
give you a chance of having n re-
presentation or your defence or a
statement written out by one who
knows; I will not even give you a
chance of consulting some lawyer for
the purpose of preparing your -case,
even if it is a case of an alibi; I will
mot allow you to call any witness
or cross-examine witnesses. These
three handicaps Dr. Katju is removing:
No lawyer, no examination of witness
in support of the defence, no cross-
examination of the police informer or
informant who supplies some informa-
tion to the executive officer, district
magistrate or his ‘wonderful’ addi-
tional magistrate or the Cemmissioner
of Police In the Uttar Pradesh there
are 52 wonderful district magistrates—
each one an ideal and a model

You know there have been abuses
of this kind; you know gross abuses
of this type., We know that the
Supreme Court and other High Courts
have released detenus because they
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were convinced that thig Act has been
abused. Why was it abused? It was
abused because it was left to the sub-
Jjective satisfaction of one man. how-
ever well-equipped he may be. Will
you allow him to arrest and then give
him a chance of a fair trial? Detain
him if you have some reasonable salis-
faction, if you have some real informa-
tion, but then immediately thereafter
give him a chance of defending him-
self. What is the harm there? He
is behind the prison bar; he cznnot
commit any prejudicial act. When he
is behind the prison bar, why aot give
him a chance of defending himself of
proving the incorrectness or the mala
fide of the case against him. We plead-
ed that at least the detenu should have
all the materials which you have placed
before the executive officer. That
was turned down,

When you are defending yourself
properly how do you expect the detenu
to defend himself if you do not give
him a chance of knowing what the
materials are on which the district
magistrate or the additional district
magistrate had ordered his detention. .
That is only fair; that is only minimum
Jjustice; that is only the barest justipe.
We also strongly protested against the
continuance of this measure for two
Years. Our appeal—my appeal and
those who are with me—was and is
“extend it for one year”. Why should
you have it for two years. Come up
before Parliament, convince us next
Yyear that conditions exist which make
the continuance of this measure justifi-
able. Take Parliament into your
confidence. Simply because of climatie
reasons Members of Parliament may be
under some handicap to consider this
measure properly, therefore you have
it for two years; have it for 20 years,
so that Parliament will not have further
trouble with this Act. Do not take
away the Parliament's right. Parlia-
ment will be doing the greatest dis-
service to itself and will be committing
a breach of trust if it allows a longer
period than one year. After all power
corrupts and absolute power, when
granted to these officials, is liable to be
abused. Therefore, I say that our
amendment and our suggestion which
rja:d negatived was not properly nega-

ived.

What do you want? Tt is no use
the hon. Home Minister trylng to re-
dicule our suggestion. We suggested
the deletion of some words and see-
tions. We said that the scope of tne
“prejudicial act” should be restricted
to a reasonable degree. Please do not
expand the scope of abuse. Therc was
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nothing improper. Our suggestion
was: “delete foreign relations”. What
is it? Why should you put a man
behind the prison bar on suspicion
that he may say something or do some-
thing which may imperil some foreign
relations with some other countries.
We know it was only meant for only
one country and there is absolutely
no necessity for it. It is our right.
it is our duty; it is the duty a{'evqiy
citizen to speak out his mind if he
thinks that something has been done
in Pakistan or in another State which
is detrimental to our interest, to the
economy of India and to the self-res-
pect of India. It is our right to do so.
1 say “delete it”. You have read the
comment of Pandit Kunzru; he is not
an extremist nor a Communist; he is
a sober, seasoned man and he pleaded
for it. It is not that I alone pleaded
for it, but it was turned down. To
whatever we suggested the answer

was peremptory, an unequivocal and -

unanimous ‘No’ from the majority.

That is our fate.

L ]

We also suggested, for Heaven's sake,
in India today, have a law on the same
footing as was the law in England;do
not entrust this unfettered discretion

one officer, or to one police
officer however eminent he may
be. We are going to trust the hon.
Dr. Katju with the exercise of this
power. We are going to take the risk
of entrusting this subjective satistac-
tion to every Home Minister in every
State in India. We said, for Heaven's
sake, do not give it to any district
magistrate or additional district magis-
trate or police commissioner. That is
the English statute.

The English statute differs from our
statute in three ways. Firstly, it is
restricted to one particular emergency,
that is war. Never during peace time
have they had it. They repealed it; it
died a patural death at the end of the
war. Secondly they never gave the
power to a district magistrate or
county magistrate or any inferior
officer. They gave it only to a res-
ponsible Minister of the Cabinet, a
man in whom the country has confi-
dence, Parliament has confidence

“and whose satisfaction is of some
value. Thirdly, even there, the Home
Minister can act only when he has rea-
sonable grounds to believe that the
person sought to be detained—I think
I am quoting the language properly—

e person sought to be detained was
recently concerned in some prejudi-
cial acts. Then and then only he can
exercise the power. That was the sug-
Eestion that we made ; that is the sug-
gestion that we are making now. Do
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not turn it down because the Opposi-
tion has put it forward. For Heaven's
sake consider it or its merits. We say,
take this responsibility yourself;
entrust it to responsible Ministers. But,
tell them that they cannot act unless
they are satisfied that the prospective
detenu was recently concerned in some
prejudicial act or in any instigation or
preparation for violence. I am only
suggesting this. There is nothing un-
reasonable, nothing improper in our
suggestion.

Dr. Katju said these are pecple who
wanted to sabotage the Bill. Nothing.
of the kind. It is not a fair stalement;.
i never expected it of him. What we-
wanted is that this Act shall come in--
to operation in any State or any part
of a State in India where the Central.
Government inr its wisdom will think.
that the conditions justify the applica--
tion of this extraordinary statute. Can.
they not believe themselves? We are
giving the power to the Central Govern--
ment. Issue a notification in the-
Gazette any time you like. Do not ex--
tend it to the whole of India all at once..
Do not allow all the district magistrates
in all the districts in all the States of
India to exercise powers under this Act.
We have been told that in certain States
no action has been taken. Not one-
detenu has been kept behind the prison .
bar. Obviously it is not necessary-
there. We feel that it is only a just..
fair and reasonable suggestion: only-
have it in those areas where the emer-
gency demands the application of this
emergency measure. You cannot stand
up and say against your own Statement
of Objects and Reasons which says
that there are parts of India where it
is not at all needed and there is no:
tt:ll::sﬁon of the application of this Act

Te.

We made various other suggestions:
I do recognise that small changes have
been made. What are the wonderful
changes that have been made? Oneis
that each order of detention has got
to be approved by the State Govern-
ment within 12 days instead of 15.
After three hours of passionate plead-
ing. the hon. Minister conceded three
days. I was lucky. The second is that
the grounds must be disclosed te the
detenu within five days eof detention:
a_small mercy and I &¢m thankful to
him. The third is that each case must
be referred to an Advisory Board within-
30 days instead of 42 days. We are

- obliged for this small mercy again.

Then. there shall be a Chairman of the
Board. who will be a High Court Judge.
Lastly. the executive officer has got to
forward to the State Government all
the materials that he has against the
person detained. Omne thing I should
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point out in all fairness. The only
gain which we have achieved is that
there shall no longer be a repetition of
the renewal of the first detention order
exactly on the same grounds for which
the man was detained. Dr. Katju saw
the force of the argument. Therefore,
a fresh detention order must be now
issued on the happenineg of fresh facts
and not the old groumds.

I still maintain that wunless you
radically alter the statute, this Act
shall be a standing slander on India’s
right to seif-rule. It is a great imputa-
tion on our capacity for democratic
self-government. We have been pas-
sionately pleading that we shall re-
move all these statutes when we get
freedom. -After flve years of freedom,
you are solemnly re-enacting all those
laws. You are still continuing to have
this power to detain without a fair op-
portunity of trial. We are still prepar-
ed, and we were all along prepared, to
consider the case of continuance of this
measure where such a case is made out.
Nothing was done. The hon. Minister
was kind enough to meniion certain
facts and flgures here. That shows
that in 1241 cases the Advisory Boards
have ordered release, that is, in about
28 per cent. of the cases, the Advisory
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standard of literacy or illiteracy, it is
absolutely impossible for them to do
justice, Three: We also urged, at
east to bring our law intu conformity
with the English war-time law and put
it on that basis.

I appeal once again before I sit down.
Let us read the signs of the times. Let
us do something to make the common
man feel and be convinced that he is
not a mere machine, that he is not a
mere tax-payer, that he is not a mere
blind recipient of all your orders, but
that he has got a self, that he has got
a personality which contributes to the
making of the orders ard also colours
the nature of the orders. That is what
we wanted. Then, he will have the
supreme satisfaction of feeling—he
may be hungry, he may be under
many distresses, economic and other-
wise—that he has not been denied
justice. His deepening frustration will
be removed. There will be real res-
ponse. We can then face the publie
and tell them that those who are in
authority today—Members of the Gov-
ernment who fought—fought not mere-
ly for freedom in the political field, but
also for the enthronement of i
dual liberty—while they are in office,
they are not going to cast to the winds
all thf cherished principles whirh they

Boards have rel d the

Does it not show that in some csses, at
least in a good number cf 1241 cases
innocent men were rounded up? You
have got to act on suspicion. How can
you possibly say that this man is a
potential criminal, a potenlial saboteur?
You know there is no question of your
going to a court. Thc grounds are
non-justiciable, You carrot invoke the
jurisidiction of any court. You cannot
do anything in a court of law. That
position still continues. The onus which
was primarily on the Government was

- not discharged.

The black spots—I will not call or

- use the term “Black Act"—in this Pre-
‘-ventive Detention Act are still there.
- One: The detenu is not going to be
supplied with all the material which

the State has against him. I ask you

in all seriousness to delete this pro-

vision. It is only a rudimentary canon

of fairplay that what you have got

against him and what the Advisory

_Board has got against him should be
placed before him. Two: There will

be still in a sense ex-parte hearing of

the rase. There will be nc chance to

cross examine and no chance to lead

evidence. From our experience we can

say that a majority of the detenus will

.be under a great handicap. In India,
‘having regard to the situation and the

p d, and that they are going to
practice, at least some of them, in free
and independent India.

Dr. Rama Rao (Kakirnada): I happen
to be one who has enjoyed only one
fundamental right, the fundamental
right to detention without trial, and
as a result of that detention and as
a result of that terror regime in jails,
I have been kept away even from com-
ing to this House till recently. And
now, in spite of all Dr. Katju's sweet
arguments. I know I may not be able
to come to this House again not be-
cause I have any motives, but just be-
cause I will exercise the same right of
agltation against this Government as
I did before., and I am likely, under
this Preventive Detention Act, to be
detained again.

Before I pdoceed further, I will read

only one sentence from my detention
order:

“He was a staunch Communist
worker, After the Chief Com-
munist leaders went underground,
he had been directing the Com-
munist campaign in Ramachandra-
puram Taluk. He presided over
a number of Communist meetings
in Ramachandrapuram Taluk, and
had been exhorting Communist
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minded workers to agitate for lift-
ing the ban on the Communist
news paper Praja Shakti.”

Shri B. Shiva Rao (Soutk Kanara—
South): May I ask from which do-
cument the hon. Member is reading?

Dr. Rama Rao: The detention order
served on e by the Government of
Madras. I was detained not for ask-
ing people to break any luw or any
order, but to agitate and bring pressure
on the Government of Madras to re-
move that unlawful ban on Praje-
Shakti. Prajo Shakti was a daily from
Vijayawada which the Madras Gov-
ernment banned and suppressed. Of
course, the fundamental rights give
us so many freedoms, freedom of ex-
pression, freedom of public speech and
‘all that, but when I spoke from a
public platform of which the whole
record was there with the Government,
they could have prosecuted me for any
unlawful statemenis I had made. But
at the public meeting, I exhorted for
the lifting of the ban.

Is there any time limit for the spe-
ech? I am speaking slowly owing to
the after-effects ot detention. I am
feeling weak.

Mr, Deputy-Speaker: What is it
that the hon. Member wants before he
proceeds?

Hon, Members: Is there any time-
limit?

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let him go on
as he likes.

Dr. Rama Rao: I will read further:

“He organised a large procession
on ‘May Day' on 1st May, 1948
from Ventur to Ramachandra-
puram.”

In the first place, it is not a fact. It
is untrue. In the second place, it is
perfectly lawful. There is no section
144 or any other section banning that
procession:

“The procession went about
shouting objectionable slogans like
‘Congress Government should he
overthrown’, ‘Police should be
rooted out'.”

I do not know what is exactly meant
by “Police should be rooted out” and
whether the processionists shouted
such slogans, and it does not say how
1 was responsible for that:

“He instigated the workers to
defy orders under sectionm 144
CrP.C. at Pandalapaka, Kurma-
puram and Ventur in Ramachandra-
puram Taluk™

1 AUGUST 1952

{Second Amendment) 5038
Bill,

First, it is false, Secondly, the order
itself does not show that I defied the
order or any. such thing:

“Under his support, the Com-
munists openly announced that
they would open a conference at
the Taluk Ryots Assn. at Edida on
4/5th June, 1948 in spite of orders
under section 144 which were in
force in that village.”

Even .then, it does not show that
they defied the order. Again I repeat
I had nothing to do with any of tnese
meetings. Ewven till this date I have
not gone to that village Edida.

Here are certain statements made:
gome of them are absolutely lawful

. activities, others absolutely false, but

my point here is that I had no oppor-
tunity to prove that any of the facts
were false, and there was no need for
the police to prove that any of these
statements was true.

Now, the preseni Bill before us
practically gives the same power to the

ice; and places me in the same help-
ess position. You make certain state-
ments. Of course. these are al' vague,
and subsequent judgments of the High
Court showed it.and according to those
judgments I could have been set at
liberty. But till now, if they make a
specific statement that on such and
such a date this Dr. Rama Rao did
certain things, I am helpless to prove
it is false.

I will give one instance. In 18941 T
returned from the General Hospital,
Visakhapatnam, after a major gastric
operation. There was a conversation
between the local medical officer and
the sub-divisional magisirate. People
sometimes become famous by the
operations they have to wundergo.
During the conversation, the doctor
mentioned to the sub-divisional magis-
trate that T had undergone such and
such an operation. The sub-divisional
magistrate was surprised. He said:
“What. was he not in town?" “No. he
returned only three days ago.” “It is
good you told me. I was about to sign
a detention order against him on the
ground that he received an under-
ground Communist 20 days ago at such
and such a playground”. And for
two months before that I had been in
the General Hospitsl. This happenea
by accident. . The sub-divisional magis-
trate told him: “I received informa-
tion that he received . . . .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is the hon.
l\;l:n:#er feeling feeble or too weak to
stan
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Dr. Rama Rag: I shall just manage.
After this I may not have this irouble
again,

Mr., Peputy-Speaker: In which case
1 would allow him to sit and speak.

Dr. Rama Rao:
much, Sir.

Thank you very

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Or he can come
to one of the front benches.

Dr. Rama Rao: I am very much
-obliged.

Mr, Deputy-Speaker: On that ac-
count, it need not be too long.

Dr. Rama Rao: I will be very brief
‘if not for your sake, at least for my
-own sake.

I was mentioning a case in which I
escaped detention very narrowly by
-almost an accident. If that doctor had
ot met that sub-divisional magistrate
-on that date, probably in another four
or five days I would have been de-

. tained, And I had absolutely no
chance of proving the fact that on
such and such a date I was lying as a
patient in the General Hospital after
-a major gastric operation.

_ Shri B. Shiva Rao: May I ask what
" -was the date of this particular incident?

Dr. Rama Rao: This refers to 1941.
My point is not that Dr. Katju sent me
1o prison at that time. The funda-
mental fact is there. I had no uvppor-
tunity of disproving a statement made
against me on which I was likely to
be sent to prison. In fact; this deten-
tion order in which the only fact is
about the .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the
‘date of particular detention order re-
ferred to?

Dr. Rama Rao: There are a number
of detention orders. I was first de-
tained on 24th June, 1948. Subse-
guently. so many orders have been

- issued, but the fact remains that 1
was in prison on the same grounds, for
more than three years.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: That is re-
moved by the recommendations of the
Select Committee. On the same
grounds no further "detention order
can be served.

Dr. Rama Rao: I am a man who
has suffered, and I know how these
things are carried out in practice. It
is true the same grounds will not be
supplied. I may b2 released and one
weex or ten days aflter that, they may
glve me a number of other grounds.
1hat I handed over an atem bomb to
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some body—if not so suppose thev
say: “Three days agy, he harded
over ten revolvers to such and such a

rson”. There is absolutely no chance
or me to prove that it is a downright.
lie. My point is that you are going to
use, you have used, both the Congress
Government and the British Govern-
ment have used the law for certain
political purpcses. At least the
British had this saving grace that they
used it during wer time. during a
great emergency. But now there is no
emergency in the country, and yet you
are still using the same Act, and you
are now seeking to extend it.

I am not for a moment going to
believe that after two years this Act
is going to stop. It is going to
continue as long as this Government
is in power. And they are going to
use it not merely against any possible
revolution, but against all opposition,
and are going to use it as a blanket
power. They are creating an atmos-
phere of lawlessness and irresponsi-
bility amongst the officers so that they

. need not satisfy any rules of procedure,

they need not satisfy any law, and
that they can arrest and detain a per-
son and send him 1o prison as to the
Bastille, during their pleasure. Of
course, all the other rules practically
do not count for anything. It is not
only the district magistrate that can
do so, but even the lowest police officer
may send a person to prison if he is
pleased.

I can quote you a number of instances
where people have been sent to prison
for reasong other than political ones
also. For instance in Vizianagaram,
there was an advocate who wa= a
Congressman. But he did the mistake
of appearing on behalf of labour
unions on payment before labour
tribunals and boards, and unfortunate-
ly he won every case against the
mill-ovners, and so naturally the
mill-owners got angry with him and
did something by which he was sent
to prison. Though he was a knmown
Congressman, and was well-known to
several Congress people, it took four
to six months to get him out of the jail,
just because he was detained under
certain charges which were absolutely
false but which he had no chance of
disproving. In my own place, one
advocate appeared on behal{ of people
who were kept in prison under section
151 of the Indian Police Act, and be-
cause he was able to bring out those
people from jail on bail, the police
authorities, the local Hitlers got angry
with him and sent him to prison with
a number of false charges for which
he had to be in jail for nearly two
years. I know of a large number or
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cases, where for reasons connected
with village factions, village parties
were sent to prison because one parti-
cular party was in the good books of
the local police officer who could there-
fore send the other party to jail on any
number of charges. :

My submission is thalt we must pro-
test against the sense of lawlessness
that has been created among the police
and local authorities. In Andhra for
instance, there was absolutely no rule
of law during 1949, 1950 and part of
1951, because the police officers had
the freedom to arrest any one, and
send him to jail. Not only that, it led
to the further freedom of harassing
people, torturing persons and even
murdering them. I know of a number
of such cases also. In Pithapuram two
Communists were arrested in a certain
village four to five miles east of Pitha-
puram and were taken away and
hundreds of people had seen them and
thousands knew that on that- parti-
cular evening these two Communists
were arrested, but the next morning
they were killed on'a road west of
Pithapuram. Then the usual state-
ment came that an exchange of fire
took place between the armed Com-
munists and the police, two Com-
munists died while the others escaped.
This sort of statement you will find
dozens of times in the old copies of
The Hindu and The Indian Express:
“Exchange of fire between armed Com-
munists ‘and the police—~two 'Com-
munists died, others escaped”, and
never a policeman injured. Of course,
sometimes it is not in a mango-
garden, but in a forest . . . .

Shri Thanu Pillai (Tirunelveli)):.Is
this all relevant to discussion of the
Bill now?

 Dr. Rama Rao: Yes. Sir, my submis-
'sion is that it is perfectly relevant, be-
<cause there is a feeling of lawlessness
among the police officers, because they
;need not satisfy the rules of ordinary
aw.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What the hon.
Member evidently has meant is this.
He might as well have wanted to say
that the scope of the present discus-
sion is only this much. The Bill has
emerged from the Select Committee,
and the Committee has done wiat it
ought to have done. So we should not
go into any other matters of policy or
general matters concerning the law-

lessness of police officers, etc. except .

In so far as they have a bearing on
what the Select Committee has done
or must have done.
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Shri A, K, Gopalan: My submission
is that...... :

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon. Mem-
ber knows how to bring them in.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: What I wanted
to say was this. Though these things
are mentioned, they are not unconnect-
ed because lhere are so many amend-
ments which have been given notice
of, and which seek to say that there
must be some principie behind all this
detention, and it is as the basis for
these amendments, that the hon, Mem-
ber is now trying to bring out all these
cases.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: But hon. Mem-
bers who speak, must have an idea of
relevancy too. Other hen. Members
can certainly try to bring them to-
pether and interpret in a different way.
Of course, I do * not attribute any
motives to anybody.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: My submission
is that even if you permit references of
this kind, you will kindly ask the hom.
Member to give the dates of these
alleged occurrences.

Dr. Rama Rao: I give this offer to
Mr. B. Shiva Rao. . . -

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
question of challenging anybody here.
Whenever any statement is made by
any hon. Member on one side, the other
side must be able to answer that.

Pr. Rama Rao: If I cannot give the
exact dates, these are there on record,
and I will give the further offer for Mr.
Shiva Rac to come to Pithapuram and
see. . .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We have been
accustomed to this kind of challenge
and offer, Whatever is said here on
the one side or the other must, as far
as possible, be definite and specific, so
that it can be answered by the other
side. A general statement of policy is
a different matter, the question of law
is a different matter, but so far as
particular facts are concerned, and
specific allegations are concerned, the
time, placed date, district, persons ete.
must be given, so that the other side
a:ay be able to refute them or admit

em. .

Shri B. Shiva Rao: DMay I make
une observation here, Sir? I am not
asking for the precise date of any
occurrence, but I think it is necessary
that the hon. Member should specify
the year in which it occurred, be-
cause only a few minutes ago, he
mentioned an incident, which on un
inquiry from myself, he said
occurred in 1941,
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‘Mr. Deputy-Speaker?! As far as
possible these facts should relate to
the period after 1947.

Dr. Rama Rao: This happened in
1950, and I may submit that I do
not ask for any inquiry, judicial or
public, -into this, H the hon.
Member Mr. Shiva Rao himself goes
to Pithapuram and inquires from
Congressmen themselves and then he
says that “I do not find any proof of
these things”, and if he is satisfied
ibhat my statements are substantially
wrong, 1 am prepared to resign from
this House. Not only this, I am
going to give you further instances
also, and 1 shal’ place the ‘whole list
of cases before the hon. Member, and
let him go to Pithapuram and satisfy
himself. He need not satisfy me or
the House, but if he is satisfied that
my statements here@ are substantially
incorrect, my resignation will be in
his hands.

Why I am saying all this -is be-
cause instead of establishing a rule
of law, you are establishing a rude of
lawless law. Not -only are people
detained without any trial, but an
atmosphere ‘is ¢éredted of ldawlessness.
In 1948, one Mr. Mayurat Shankaran
was arrested in Malabar, and the next

%he was hantled over to the jail
authorities in a hopeless condition of

frjurfes, -arid in_a day or so_he died.
It was the hon. Mettiber Mr. ‘Kelappah
who “was at that ‘time a very
important Cong an, who made a
statement to The brinsmg out
all ‘these facts. A The deétenu was
tortured in jail "while in police custo-
dy, ‘and as a result in a day he died.
How did the police get the courage
to behave in this lawless manner?

use there was this lawless law.

‘Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am efraid
the hon. ‘membeér §s pgoing into the
principle of the Bill. The Bil! is
there with the principle having been
accepted. It was sent to -the -Select
Committee, and it has emerged now
from the Select Committee. The
scope of the Bill is therefore narrow.
if the hon. Member wants to say that
an opportunity should be given to the
detenu to go before the Advisory
Boards and make these complaints,
then that is one matter, and if argu-
ments are advanced, they must have
a relevancy. But if any suggestions
are to be made that this Bill may be
amended or that such and such a
thing was not done by the Select
Committee, that is another matter.
But all this talk about the general
question of lawlessness etc.
the root of the matter that 1he Blll is
not to ‘be there, The hon. Member
may reserve all this at this stage.

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendment) 5044
Bill

Dr. Rama Rao: This should be
used only in an emergency and should
not be used as a normal law. The
suggestion that only when the Presi-
dent or the Government declare a
state of emergency this should be
used was rejected by the Select Com-
mittee. I was in Cuddalore Jail
detained on what I consider to be
absolutely false and unlawful grounds.
I was there beaten, robbed of
articles. I was shot at and my health
was broken. AN these because I
had addressed a public meeting ask-
ing people to agitate against the ban

Mr. Deputy-Speaker :

Dr. Rama Rao: 1849, Now,
several false statements were made
against us, that we went to the jail
offices with certain- demands, that we
refused to go, we used sticks and
stones and all that. If the hon
Member, Mr. Shiva Rao, would go to
the Cuddalore Central Jail and see
the place of flring and beating where
two of our comrades died on the sp
and one lost an eye and anot
became permanently lame and see the
mark made by the shot which was
aimed at me, on an electric pole there
and if he then says ‘that my state-
ment is uritrue, I am prepared to
resign. We were helpless in deten-
tion; we could not do amything.

in what year?

Pandit Thakur Das Bhargava: Gur-
gaon): Was any enquiry made?

Dr. Rama Rao: Certainly not. Two
hundred of my, comrades, went on
hunger strike for 27 days asking for
an inquiry. No inquiry was made,
unless you call it an inguiry when
the district magistrate came there and
asked the man who was guilty of this
murder and went away, without see-
ing us or our memorandum. We
definitely asked for an inquiry, though
we did send the memorandum to the
Government, and naturally it must
have found its way to the wastepaper
basket. Two hundred of us were om
hunger strike for 27 days just asking
for an inquiry. I think I must give
some facts to the House.

Dr. Lanka Sgndaram: Was it
published?

Dr,;Rama Rao: Not atﬂ all. d‘I}-]aﬁre-
was # p inquiry, no report an se
sta?e-‘rgnts d were published. One
thing more. On the previous day on
some lame excuse, our interviews were
stopped and our letters were cut off
for one month, so much so that for
one month we could not see any
our relatives or send letters. We
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could not give any publicity to this.
The next day we were going in a
procession.  Processions were then
quite lawful and common. Proces-
gions were usual and the jaid autho-
rities never objected to them, not
even to that procession on that day.
We practically completed it. When
we came to the last stage, the super-
intendent was outside the gate—of
course most of the hon. Members
know about jail except one or two
who spoke as if they did not know.
It was a double gate. 'Warders with
arms, rifles and lathis were kept in-
side the gate. Only the superinten-
«dent was outside. If we had seen
them with arms and lathis, there, we
would have stopped the procession. 1f
we had received a word that they did
not want the procession to proceed,
we would have stopped, because we
knew in what temper the superinten-
dent was. On the previous day he
was thrusti his revolver on the
chest of my leader, Mr. Gopalan. We
knew he was out to shoot us.

we would not have gone there; we
want to achieve Communism. not to
die in jail like rats. So the next
day, when we were going in proces-
sion, without warning, without even
giving us an inkling that they were
ready for some mischief, he pounced
upcn us. About 100 yards from the

Shri B, Shiva Bao: I am reluctant
to interrupt the ‘hon. ‘Member on a
point of order. May I know if all
these details are, strictly spedking, in
order at ‘this stage of the discussion
of the Bill.

‘Bhri A. K.:Gopalan: The hon. Home
Minister explained the jolly and
happy conditions inside the jail when
he went to see some friends in jail
when he was Governor. He said
they were happy, they had news-
papers and all other things were
supplied and so on. The hon.
Member is only ex]glaining the other
side that the hon. Home Minister did
not see.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: It is not that
every statement made by the Minister
ought to be replied to, unless there is a
positive suggestion either for amend-
ment of this Bill or that the matter
was not coasidered by the Select
Committee. Every hon. Member may
have his own experience in jail—
both on this side and on that side,
under one Government or another
Government. Therefore, it will be
endless. Let thes hon. Member come
to the point.

-Dr. Rama Rao: Since ihey are not
likely to suffer under this Bill and
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since we have suffered, I must telk
them. I am just reminded of an in-
cident when Pandit Motilal Nehru.
went to consult a physician and then.
he was telling a story; the physician.
was getting restless and finally asked.
Pandit Motilal Nehru: “What is your -
present trouble” and Pandit Motilak .
Nehru replied: “My present trouble -
is that I have a physician who has no .
patience to hear me”., Of course, I
cannot say the same thing to this-
House.

Shri C. R. Narasimhan: Can the-
jail administration be discussed here? -

Dr. RBama Rao:
law......

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I do not want-
to keep the debate prolonged by such
statements. Some of the hon
friends in the Select Committee -
wanted various kinds of concessions -
in the jail administration, their
allowances and so many conveniences,
comforts etc. inside the jails. It is
possible for them to say that so far
as a man is put into a jail, he ought .
not to be forgotten. When such .
serious incidents occur in jail .
some of the detenus, there must be -
some safeguards. It is not wrong .
for him to went out his feelings here -
and then say such and suchkr a thing
ought to be done. It is the duty and .
‘responsibility of -every Government—
State or Central—before ‘it exercises .
‘its powers under this Detention Act
‘to 'see that ‘the man is safe and
‘healthy and that every precaution ‘is
taken inside the jail. I do not want
to shut it out. Hon. Members will
bear with that. But I would not like
repetition of all those sorrowful and .
sickening stories. One incident is -
enough.

Dr. Rama Rao: I would only add
that this is the sort of terror regime -
in jails. It broke down our health
completely.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the
remedy?

Dr. Rama Rao: The remedy is that
it must be used only as an emergency -
and not as mormal law which now
the present Bill wants.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: So in an emer-
gency these murders in jail are allow-
ed? I am not able to follow the -
argument of the hon. Member.

Dr. Rama Rao: At least it will be
limited and that is all I want to sub-
mit. So this lawless behaviour of -
the police, where they looted and
hundreds of women......

It is this lawless-.
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Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We are now
.going into another story. It is true.
I did not expect every hon. Memkbker
to know the details. I would only
arge upon hon. Members to bear this
-constantly in mind: What is the
Bill that was referred to the Select
~Committee? How has it emerged
from the Select Committee? What
;are the points in the minutes of
~dissent which require consideration?
“These are the points on which the hon.
Member must concentrate.

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalaai (New
"Delhi): If he makes a constructive
suggestion...... -

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I do not know
how far the case 1s......

Dr. Rama Kao: I will not trouble
you, Sir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
-guestion of troubling. I must regulate
‘the debate in the House. I am
znxious to hear the hon. Member as
:much as possible; only he must be rele-
“vant.

Dr. Rama Rao: Coming to the point,
this authority to detain a person
.should not be left to an executive
officer like a district magistrate who
4in the ultimate analysis is the police
.inspector, but it must be restricted, at
least as a brake, as suggested in the
.minuies of dissent, to the Home
Ministers at the Centre and in the
States. Otherwise, what happens is
that the freedom given to the sub-
inspector is misused. This lawless-
ness on the part of the police creates
.a situation where the people are
compelled to take law and order in
their own hands. Just because there
was no 'aw and order in the country
and custodians of law and order went
.about raping and murdering, several
.incidents happened wherein people
took law and order in their own
‘hands. But the Party in Opposition
has been blamed for so many unlaw-
ful and violent acts. This black
Act—about which our friends are
very sensitive—this black Act gives
4hat power of lawlessness into the
hands of the lower executive. There-
fore, I submit it must be restricted at
every stage. [t should be used only
in an emergency, and it must be used
-only by the Home Ministers at least
whom we can expect to use it with
.caution and care. It should also be
used very sparingly.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: So many emi-
‘nent lawyers have taken part in this
jebate, both for and against this
measure, that I felt the point of view
5f a layman would not be out of
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place, especially of one who served
on the Select Committee, who listened
very carefully and attentively to all
-the discussions that took place in the
Select Committee and weighed each
proposal made for the amendment of
the Bill by various members of that
Committee. I must say I was greatly
disappointed with the speech of my
hon. friend, Mr. Chatterjee. He first
said that the majority in the Select
-Committee said a “peremptory no"
to every proposal that emanated from
members of the other groups. That
that is an unfounded allegation is
borne out by the report of the Select
Committee itself. Later he modified
this statement, and he grudgingly
acknowledged, ridiculing them at the
same time, that “some small changes”
had been introduced. Speaking this
morning, the Home Minister explained
the main changes that have been in-
corporated in the Bil. as a result of
the labours of the Select Committee,
and incidentally referred to the pro-
visinns of the principal Act in order
to indicate the nature and the magni-
tude of the advance made. In view
of the speech made by the last
speaker. I think it would be relevant
to refer very briefly to the changes
that have been made in the applica-
tion of the nprinciple of preventive
detention during the last four years.
The Home Minister made certain
casual references to that aspect of
the case, and I propose to go into a
little more detail than he did.

11 A M.

_Broadly speaking, preventive deten-
tion has passed through four stages
during the last four years; and I
maintain that at each successive
stage there has been, on the ont side,
increasing restraints placed on the

discretion of the executive, and,
on the other, increasing safe-
guards provided for the detenu.
Most of the criticisms that have

been levelled against the princi-
pal Act and the report of the Select
Committee might have been valid
during 1948 and 1949. The last speaker
misunderstood the point of my inter-
ventions and he seemed to think that
I challenged the accuracy of his
statements. That was not my object.
I wanted to point out that many of
the things to which he objected, and
very rightly objected, took place, some
of them before 1948. and all of them
in either 1948 or 1949. I labour the
point because it was only in 1950
that Sardar Patel brought the Central
Government intothe picture so far as
the principle of preventive detention
is concerned.

It is easy, sitting in this House, or
even outside, in 1952 to be critical of
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various acts of the administration in
1948 and 1949. 1948, need I remind
the House, was the year in which the
great tragedy took place in Birla
House? We know there was a good
- deal of searching of hearts at various
levels of the executive, both at the
Centre and in the States, whether that
‘tragedy could have been averted by
.more vigorous action, by greater
vigilance on the part of the execu-
tive. In 1948, as an independent
Republic we were a few months old,
and inevitably the administration had
‘to face the serious dislocation caused
by partition. Many States, because
-of large-scale retirement of senior
-officers, were compelled to put junior
and even inexperienced officers in
charge of districts; and I have no
doubt, not only from statements made
shere, but from judgments of the High
‘Courts and even of the Supreme
-Court, that in a number of cases ex-
ecutive officers acted hastily or on
insufficient grounds. But let us not
forget the other side of the picture:
where junior officers placed in respon-
#ibility, because there was no one else
1o take their palce, were faced with
issue like this, were they to err on the
side of the security of the State or on
‘the side of the liberty of the citizen?
They took the safer course and resort-
ed to policies and actions which later,
in some cases at any rate, did not bear
the scrutiny of the High Courts. And
‘who can blame them for acting in that
manner in a very difficult situation?
That, as I said, was th® first phase, in
1948 and 1949. when cases of preventive
detention were not referred to Advi-
:sory Boards.

It was in 1950, in the early part of
1950, that Sardar Pated brought this
“measure in this House in the light of
experience gained in the previous two
years. At that stage Sardar Patel felt
“that he could not go furiher than he
did in providing more safeguards-for
detenus. The Home Minister referred
to the fact that at that time, under the
principal Act of 1950, though Advisory
Boards were constituted. only in a
very limited number of cases was
reference made to those Boards: Cases
connected either with the maintenance
of supnlies or essential services or of
detention of a foreigner. I have taken
the trouble to find out precisely what
was the prooortion of ~ases that were
referred to the Advisory Bozrds under
Sardar Patel's Act of 1950. and the
answer I have got is very significant.
Not more than two or three per cent. of
Those cases were referred to the Ad-
“visory Boards. In cases where a de-
lention order was made for reasons
connected either with the defence of
India or the security of India, or the
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maintenance of public order, there was
no provision in that Act for reference
to an Advisory Board. It was open fo
the Government to review such cases
in consu{ation with a Judge, or one
qualified to be a Judge, of the High
Court.  But even there Mr. Chatterjee
complained that the Home Minister
gave no facts and figures to support the
proposition that in 1950 the executive
acted with a certain measure of
restraint and circumspection. I have
figures here before me, also obtained
from official sources, which are of
tiplerest and relevancy in this connec-
ion.

It was in July 1948 that the Central
Government made an attempt for the
first time to obtain the figures of de-
tenus from all States, but until a
month or two later they could not
obtain the figures from many of the
Part B and some of the Part C States.
Mr. Gopalan said in his speech on an
earlier occasion that according to his
information there were 15,000 cases of
detention at the peak of the moment.
That figure is wide of the mark. The
highest was about 8,000 at any time.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: i
Hyderabad or excluding Hyderabad?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: 8090 on thé 15th

“April 1950 and this includes accérding

to my information which is based on
an, official statement all States, Part A,
B and C. Anyhow, I will have that
point checked. : ' )

Shri Nambiar (Mayuram): I want
to know the total number so far dealt
with under the Preventive Detention
dMct. not the figure on a particular
ate.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: This is not
question hour and the hon. Member is
not giving replies to questions. Ac-
cording to his own data, he is giving
the figures. : N

Shri Nambiar: But the clarification
must be correct.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is no
harm in his stating his fipures. Mr.
Gopalan said it was 15,000 and the hon.
BM[l'?Ur:'!)ber is saying that it is only

Shri B. Shiva Rao: In the first haif
of 1948, I may repeat, these were the
fieures available with the Government
of India, but in the second half of
1948 the highest was 4,800 detentions
in September of that year. In April
1949 the number rose to 5400, Later
it rose to 8090 and then there was a
eradual policy of release, although
ithere was no reference to Advisory
Boards. The number dropped to 7,500
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in November 1949 and then there was
:g:.‘m a slight rise and in April 1950

figure was over 8,000. But after
the summer of 1950 the number of
detenus diminished considerably -and
at the end of 1950 it had dropped from
8,090 to 3,200, That was the second
phase of the application of the prinei-
ple of preventive detention immediate-
l¥ on the Central Government coming
into the picture.

Sardar Patel's successor, Shri Raja-
gopalachari, introduced an amending
Bill in February of last year, and the
result of that amending Bill was that
the working of the prinicipal Act was
considerably liberalised so as to require
the reference of all cases of detention
10 three-member Advisory Boards.
That point is of particular significance,
and T repeat it because Mr. Chatterjee
was not here a few minutes ago, but
he has now come into the House.
Under the principal Act of 1950, 98 per
cent. of the cases of detention were
not referred to Advisory Boards, but
after the amendment of the Act in
1951 all cases were to be referred to
three-member Advisory Boards. Mr.
Chatterjee made the point that as a
restlt of such reference to Advisory
Boards over 1,200 cases of detention
were found to be on inadequate

and these detenus were Tre-
. I must h:onfessﬂthat 1 a}ntﬁgt
able to :grasp the significance of
statement. On the other hand, I should
have thought that a fair-minded
«ritic would hawe given credit to the
Government of India for having had
the fairmess to refer all those cases,
which previously had not been so
referred, to Advisory Boards and for
acting so promptly and so generously
on the advice of these Boards.
was also provided in the amending
Bil that in any case where the
detenu so desired he could be heard
in person. There was further an
express provision  enabling the
Goverpment to release delenus on
parole.

Apain, let me come to the other
aspect of facts and figures. 1 said
@ minute or two ago that the number
of detenus at the end of 1950 stood at
3.200. By the end of May 1951 the
number had dropped to 2,100. At the
end of August 1951 it was below 1.900.
Figures were given by the Home
Minister at an earlier stage of the
debate, detailing month by month
the releases of detenus since the
beginning of this year, and at the end
of May 1952 the number of detenus
was 990 in the whole of India. This
background is necessary to appreciate
what I said at the beginning, namely,
that many changes have been incor-
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porated in the Bill as a result of the
labours of the Select Commitiee and
the first thing that any fair-minded
person would readily concede is that
the Bilb has been considerably im-
proved by the Select Committee.

There has been a good deal of com-
plaint.  Mr. Chatterjee said that un-
fettered discretion has been placed in
the executive officer who passes the
order of detention in the first place.
He did not choose to point out that
that officer hereafter must place all
particulars bearing on any detention
order before the State Government
for its final approval and obtain that
approval within twelve days. Under
the old Act, he was expected to sub-
mit to the State Government only
those materials which bore on the
necessity of the order, in other
words, materials which in his opinion
justified the passing of the order.

Another important step taken as a
result of the labours of the Se'ect Com-
mittee is that the State Government,
after giving its approval to a detentiom
order, should communicate it as soon as
may beto the Central Government for
information. I would like to point out to
the House (hat taking this amendment
with rection 13 which authorises the
Central Government to revoke 'a
detention order, the amended measure
as it is now before the House gives
the Central Government a much
larger measure of authority and fa-
fluence to ensure that the provizions
of the Act are applied with due cir-
cumspection and restraint,

Another new clause that has beemnr
added ensures that the Chairman of
every Advisory Board should be a
person who is or has been a judge of
a High Court. The period within
which the reference to an Advisory
Board should be made has been
Eeduced from six weeks to thirty
ays.

Another point of importance—and
this Mr. Chatterjee was candid enough
to acknowledge—is that once a per-
son has been detained and has served
his period of detention a fresh order
can passed against him only on the
basis of fresh facts. Therefore, ¥
maintain that the result of the work
of the Select Committee, taking in one
sweep as it were the various Acts that
have been in operation, both Centra¥
and Stzte, has been a very consider-
able advance in favour of the detenus.
This Bill, if placed on the statute book
would, I submit, fer all practical pur-
poses be both fool-proof and knave-
proof I make this point because
critics of this measure have indulged
in a good deal of criticism and have
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poinied  out many unsatisfactory
teatures in the administration of this
Act, practically all of which relate
‘to the first period of 1946 and 1948,
since which time this measure has
been changed beyond recognition.
‘They have been flogging not only a
dead horse, but a horse which died
more than two years ago and they
have had tc exhume the bones of that
dead horse in order to flog them on
the floor of this House.

I have another complaint against
the Members of the Opposition who
thave been indulging in - criticism
against the various provisions of, the
Act and the manner in which it has
been administered. Mr. Gopalan
read out, when he made a long speech,
from this volumg Civil Liberties in
India. Unconsciously I hope, he gave
the impression to the House that he
was quoting from the actual texts of
the various detention orders which
were passed by the Madras Govern-
ment under the Maintenance of Public
Order Act. I took the trouble of
obtaining a copy of that volume. It
is a very interesting volume, and it is
also very interesting to observe what
use Mr. Gopalan made of this volume.
Appendix No. I from which he read,
does not contain the actual texts of
any of the detention orders. It is
in many cases a summary in three or
four words prepared by Mr. S.

namevrthy, Secretary of the
Madras Civil Liberties Union, indi-
cating the nature of the charges under
the Maintenance of Public Order Act.

I will read just two or three of the
summaries which were prepared by
this gentleman to indicate the one-
sided and the thoroughly mischievous
mature of these summaries. One
man is supposed to have been detain-
ed for participating in a mill strike;
another man, because he appears in a
red uniform; a third man is supposed
1o have been detained because he
attacks Government's food policy; a
fourth man because he spends his
time read'ng Communist literature,
And then. Sir, may I come to Mr.
‘Gopalan himself.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I reed out the
whole thing about the man who was
arrested for wearing a red shirt and a
white pyjama.

Shri B, Shiva Rao: T will have
-something more to tell Mr. Gopalan
before I finish., I now come to Mr.
‘Gopalan himself. I am prepared to
place abundant material before the
House to indicate the utterly irres-
ponsible and mischievous nature of
this sort of thing which has been
bandied about on the floor of the
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House and my hon. friend has given
the impression that these are textual
reproductions of detention orders.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I had the book
with me and I clearly stated that it
was a summary of the detention
orders. I did not say that I was
reading from the actual detention
orders.

Mr. Depuiy-Speaker: The  hon.
Member, Mr. Shiva evidently
wants to remove any doubt or mis-
apprehension that might have been
created in the minds of hon. Members.
The impression that was left in the
mind of several hon. Members was
that wearing a red shirt and .white
trousers was all the charge against
the detenu; whereas. Mr. iva Rao
wants to say that it was only one of
the several other charges.

He may be allowed to proceed.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: Even if it was
only one of the several other charges,
that charge—alone, wearing a red shirt
and a white pyjama, makes the other
charges illegal.

E

Shri B. Shiva Rao: I can see my

hon. friend becoming very uneasy.....

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I am not at

all uneasy. I have got a bundle of
detention orders which I shafl read
out to you.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: May I seek the
protection of the Chair, Sir? We
listen to hon. Members opposite
patiently.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : Let me regulate
the debate. It is not unparliamentary
if an hon. Member spe with force
and emotion. According to Mr. Shiva
Rao the hon. Member is feeling
uneasy—that is his reading.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Let me deal
with my hon. friend himself. He
=aid he had a copy of his own deten-
tion order in front of him, but be
chose to read the summary. I am
reading from the report of the
ceedings of the House on that day:

“Mr. Gopalan: The main
grounds of detention are: 1947:
exr-President of the Kerala
Congress _ Committee; Resigned
from the Congress Party; stood as
a Communist candidate in

Calicut; collected Rs. 8,000 for
Communist party funds; demand-
ed an enquiry into the condnet
of corrupt officials and black-
marketeers; coodemned the Cong-
ress people for running after jobs,
and so on.”
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"There is one little sentence wh.ic.h
he did not want to read.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is the order
ngmn,st Mr. Gopalan wholly extracted

Shri B, Shiva Rao: I am reading a
passage from Mr. Gopalan's speech in
which he has indicated the grounds of
bis detention. After all he knows
his own grofthds of detention very
much better than anyone else. He
created the impression in the House
that what he was reading from this
volume represented a fair summary of

the mund.q of detention given to him
by Madras Government.
8hri A. K. Gopalan rose—

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Let me proceed ;
1 protest against this sort of inter:
Tuption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : So far as tagetls_

Shri B. Spiva Rao: I am com to
the explanation. My hon ,
s0 uneasy that he does not want me
to proceed.

: Mr. Deputy-Speaker: My recollec-
tion is what is reported in the speech
is from his own detention order which
he read in e

B. va Rao: I will satisty
you in a minute, Sir, because I have
here the full text of the detention
order against Mr. Gopalan and I want
¥you and I want the House to judge

understand as a fair summary is
correct. I am_reading from Mr,
Gopalan’s own detention order issued
by the Chief Secretary to the Madras
Government, on the 9th of December
1948. I hope you will allow me a
few minutes, because it is a point of
some importance:

“Mr. Gopalan is one of the
accredited leaders of the Commu-
nist Party in Malabar. The
Cnmmumst Party has of late
launched a campaign of utter law-
lesspess in Malabar, committing
dacoities in out of the way places,
assaulting innocent persons, for-
cibly snatching fire arms from
licence-holders and intimidating
the public in many ways.

In 1946 Mr. Gopalan incited the
Mapalas of Eranad."—ysu and I
know very well what exolosive
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atmosphere can be ecreated in
Malabar and particularly in
Eranad—"Mr, Gopalan incited the
" Mapalas of Malabar to precipitate
a communal revolt in furtherance
of the party’s plan to create wide-
spread unrest and was arrested
and proceeded against under
section 107. He exhorted the
Police to go on strike and to dis-
obey the orders of their superiors
when dealing with strikes sponsor-
ed by the Communist Party.”

I have not the least objection to-
place the whole of the document oo
ihe Table of the House. 1 do not.
want to take the time of the House..
(Interruption).

peaking at Alathur on 3rd
Nwember. 1947...

Shri A. K. Gopalan: 1f the whole:
charge-sheet is placed on the Table-
of the House, I am not against it, Sir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon.
Member himself is giving way. Various
extracts were read the hon.-
Member, Mr. Gopalan, on this side
from various detention orders tryin,
to make it appear that the grounds
detention were so absurd that any
honourable man could be arrested and.
detained. So far as I can under-
stand, the intention of the hon.
Member, Mr. Shiva Rao, is to show
ihat the grounds are not such harm-
less things as have been made to-
appear but more serious things. If
he wants to refer to them, let him do
go. I find that hon. Members start
something and then collapse and put.
it to the Chair to intervene between
the troubles here! I allowed Mr.
Gopalan to read certain things. I
have no objection to Mr. Shiva Rao-
reading certain other things. If I find
that it is irrelevant I will tell him so.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I am not
against his reading the extracts. The-
whole charge-sheet may be read. I
am not against it.

Shri Feroze Gandhi (Piatapgarh
Distt.—West cum Rae Bareli Distt.—
East): On a point of information, Sir.
When Members of the Opposition are-
soeaking, tha Speaker does not allow
any of us to make any interruption.
We have to keep our mouths shut.
May I know -vhether you intend to
follow the same practice? When
Members on this side speak, all the
time there is interruption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Certainly I
will not allow any hon. Member to-
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interrupt. But the hon, Member him-
self ought not to invite interruptions!

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir, if truth in-
vites interruptions I cannot help it.
But I must in all fairness place the
facts before the House, the actual
grounds of detentior. in the words in
which the order was communicated to
the hon. Member.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let him read.
Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“Speaking at Alathur on 3rd
November 1947 he incited disaffec-
tion amongst the - ranks of the
Police suggesting that the police-
men should do only six hours
duty, * *

S ing at Mannarghat on
10th November, 1947, he said that
Sub-Inspector”—Sir, I shall omit
the name—*so-and-so was going
to create Hindu-Muslim riots and
that the Collector and the Deputy
Superintendent of Police had
made use of this Sub-Inspector to
prepare the scene for British rule
to come back.

On 16th November 1947 at
Talikkara he held out a threat
that if the Sub-Inspector of Nada-
puram was to continue his ways
he would have to face the same
ate as  Sub-Inspector  Kutti
Krishna Menon who was killed in
L course of a rioting a few years

CK.

Dr. Katju: That is soft language!
Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“Speaking at Tellicherry on
18th November, 1947, he incited
the public against the Malabar
Special Police by alleging that
they were responsible for several
_atrocities and threatened them
with dire consequences when the
Communists came into power at
a future date.”

I am sorry that my hon. friend Dr.
Syama Prasad Mookerjee is not here.
Oh, he has®come.

“Speaking on ~th December,
. 1947, he incited the public against
Head Constable Ananda Kurup,
advocating that he should be
killed like Sub-Inspector Kutli
Krishna Menon.”

My friend comes in at a very con-
Vvenient moment.

“He (Mr. Gopalan) spoke in
contemptuous  terms of  the
Government of India and said
that it consisted of reactionaries

e Syama Prasad Mukerjee,
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R. K. Shanmukham Chetty and
Baldev Singh who were responsi-
ble for the communal riots in
the country.” .

These are the actual grounds of"
detention communicated to  Mr.
Gopalan by the Madras Government
from which he sought to create the-
impression in the House that he was -
giving a fair summary. It may be-
of passing interest... :

Dr. 8. P. Mookerjee: Please read .
the whole of it.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: The matter
was decided by a court and I was
acquitted in ald the three cases to-
which he referred. When a case has--
been decided upon in court, is it in.

. order...

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We are going-.
into what followed.

Shri A. K. Gopalan: I was acquitted. .

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon.
Member, Mr. Gopalan, said that many
of the charges were apparently so
absurd that no charges could be made.
It is another thing for the courts to -
come to the conclusion that particular
charges have not been proved. We -
are in the initial stage now. Possi-
bly the hon. Member may come to -
some more cases decided by the courts.
There is a saying in my part of the
country. *“‘As soon as a Reddy or patil .
comes, once again the purana must
be started”. Merely because Dr.
Syama Prasad Mookerjee has come in,
should it be repeated once again?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir, I will not
start the purana once again—not the -
whole of it.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Yes, not the -
whole of it.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: It will interest
the House to know that when Mr.
Gopalan read out this summary frome
this wvolume regarding himself, he -
omitted one little sentence. The-
House will be interested to know the
manner in which the summary was
made, that Mr. Gopalan objected to
the appointment of Mr. R. K.
Shanmukham Chetty and Dr. Syama
Prasad Mookerjee. That one sentence
he did not read out to the House
when he read out the summary. Of -
course I can understand...

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: What is the
objection?

Shri B. Shiva Rao: ... the idea being -
that Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee has
passed through a certain reformation .
and is a good littde boy.
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Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: What is the
point? The police said that Mr.
Gopalan said that Syama Prasad
Mockerjee was an undesirable person
4n the Cabinet.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: There is un-
-fortunately some unnecessary mis-
aunderstanding created. The hon.
Member evidently was reading, be-
fore Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee
-wcame in, from the authentic copy that
was obtained from the Madras Govern-
ent regarding the grounds of deten-
“tion of Mr. Gopalan. Then he said
“ithat a reference was made even to
such hon. Members like Dr. Syama
. Prasad Mookerjee as reactionaries in
‘the Government.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee: So far as I
-.could gather, in the grounds of deten-
tion which were supplied it was men-
tioned that the police said that Mr.
‘Gopalan said that so-and-so-was
r reactionary. Mr. Gopalan said he
«did not say it, and that was proved.
"That is the sort of grounds on which
people are detained.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon.
" Member is now reading the grounds
~that were submitted to the detenu.
He has not yet come to the next stage
vof the decision of the court.

Shri B. Shiva Rao:

“In one of the speeches Mr.
‘ Gopalan said that if the present
- state of affairs continued, many
.incidents like the Jallianwala
. Bagh would be repeated in the
history of the country. He also
stated in one of his speeches that
" he told the Collector (of Malabar)
once that if the Communists were
“ to come to power they would dig
a trench and bury those belonging
to the Malabar Special Police”.

This is the kind of...

Shri Nambiar: Cock
« stories.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker : I have repeat-
--edly asked hon. Members not to be so
impatient, They lose their case by
showing such impatience. It does
- not give them an advantage. 1 shall
see to the best of my ability that there
is no interruption unnecessarily, so
< far as hon. Members on either side are
concerned. Let not the thread of it

: be disturbed. It applies to both sides.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: Sir. 1 shall leave

" Mr. Gopalan alone with the statement
on the grounds of order given to him

by the Madras Government. My

only purpose was to indicate that in

:giving this House summaries of such
~grders, they should at least be fair and

and bull
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indicate what were the grounds which
were communicated to them.

In the course of the debate the
Home Minister put a straight gquestion
to hon. Members sitting opposite and
said: Will you give a categorical
assurance that you will abjure
violence, then there will be no need
for an Act of this kind on the statute
book. And Mr. Hiren Mukerjee
went into a long and very eloquent
passage about people‘ rising up in
arms, people suppressed for genera-
tions and so on, and he said: If
there is murder. if there is some blood-
shed, after all it is like the prick of a
thorn on a rose bush.

The other day Mr. Gopalan read a
certain extract from the judgment of
Justice Mack of the Madras High
Court and he referred to it with
approval. I too will quote a judg-
ment given by Justice Mack and it
was on a bajl application case before
the appellate side of the Madras High
Court. It is dated the drd of
November 1951, Mr. M. V. Sundaram
and 42 other Communists in the
Ramanathapuram  conspiracy  case
appealed to the High Court for bail
and this is what Justice Mack said on
he]}ah‘. of his brother judge and him-
sell:

“The accused were charged with
conspiracy with the object of over-
awing the Government by crimi-
nal force and acts of violence bet-

ween January 1949 and June
1950...".

Shri Nambiar: On a puint of order,
ma;;hl say t]:;at ‘tl:us‘:l1 case is a;ﬂ)—judice
as the case is pending in e!:llza
Court and any reference to that
not justified.

Shri B. Shiva Rao: The bail appli-
cation is complete.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Su far as the
baijl application is concerned, the sub-
ject has been disposed of. .

Shri B. Shiva Rao: The first accused,
Mr. Sundaram had filed an affidavit
before their Lordships end in
judgment Justice Mack observed:

“This application for bail has
been supported by an affidavit by
Sundaram, the first accused™—

I am quoting the words of the Judge:

“With rather an astonishing
attempt to explain and justify
throwi of bombs included in
the o acts alle;ed in pursuance
of the conspiracy.
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“One paragraph in the affidavit stated
the following and I am quoting from
the judgment:

“The unprecedented repression
let loose by the Government on
the members of the Communist
Party had resulted in the
members of the party resorting to
these acts.”

His Lordship said that this was an as-
tonishing line of defence for the user
of country-bombs and explosives in
self-preservation—whether of the indi-
vidual or party is not clear.

He added and again I am quoting
from the judgment:

“It was -a very oisturbing
feature of this application. It
ecould be regarded in fact as an
invitation to the courts them-
selves to uphold and justify the
use of bombs by a political party
or its members which under no
eircumstances Wwhatsoever could

ssibly be tolerated or justified.

'he affidavit reveals the existence
of a most subversive doctrine
seeking to justify resort to the use
of bombs, explosives and all kinds
of violence as self-defence against
the alleged repression of the
Government.”

The last speaker complained that in
Andhra, whereas the armed Commu-
nists were- killed by the police, the
police would not obligin stand in
the way of the bullets released by the
€ommunists; and that is another act
of repression  on the part of the
Government, I suppose!

. Let me-go back to Justice Mack’s
judgment:

“A further disturbing feature
mainfest in the present trial is the
faeility with which the members
of the Comimunist Party abscond
when .wanted in connection with
cases against them and successfully
evade arrest for long periods.
The modus operandi plays fast and
loose  with the entire criminal
machinery of the law, holding up
cases indefinitely and results in
absconding accused having to be
tried over and over again in
separate trials. It is extremely
difficult to absolve the Communist
Party organisation from responsi-
bility for this technique. It is a
reasonable inference that the or-
ganisation is aware where the
accused absconding in the present
case are,”

I do not want to take more time of
the House, but Mr. Chatterjee in the
124 PS.D,
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concluding portions of his speech said
“Parliament is on its trial”. I entirely
agree with him that Parliament is on
its trial. Whether the Bill should be
put on the statute book, what should
be its provisions, what should be its
duration—these are not questions
which are answered by the Prime
Minister or the Members of his Govern-
ment. These are questions which can
be answered satisfactorily only by
Members sitting opposite.

Dr. S. P. Mookerjee in one of his
most eloguent passages in his last
speech dramatized a certain incident
in this House more than 20 years ago:
that Pandit Motilal Nehru was sitting
where Shri Gopalan was sitting and
Vithalbhai Patel was sitting where you
are sitting at present and he said that
Pandit Motilal Nehru denounced the
principle of preventive detention with
all the vigour of which he was capable.
That is perfectly true. that time
may 1 suggest to Dr. Mookerjee that
the method of the ballot box was not
open to the Swarajist Party. Entren-
ched on these Benches was insolence
in all its might. The slogan at that
time was: “Let the dogs bark but the
caravan marches on"”. 1s that the
sitnation at the present moment?

Mr. H. N. Mukerjee threw a
challenge at us and said: Why does
not the Prime Minister or any member
of the Congress Party contest the
election in any part of the eountry?
Why did we miss that opportunity six
or eight months ago? They speak
glibly of the millions of India, but for
whom they speak? Dr. Mookerjee
spoke of the millions whose views he
reflects on the floor of the House. I
looked at the results of the General
Elections. There are not many
millions. Dr. Mookerjee's party
represents not even one million; not
even half a million; it is 268,000. The'
Congress Party got 38 million votes
out of the 52 million and that is the
support behind this measure, If Mr.
Chatterjee asks: How long is this
law going tc be on the statute book, I
again repeat, the answer can be fur-
nished not by Members of the Govern-
ment sitting here but by the Members
sitting opposite.

Shri Sarangadhar Das (Dhenkanal—
West Cuttack): On this occasion I have
no desire to go into the details of the
Bill. As I said on a previous occasion,
I as well as my party were opposed
to the very principle of it. I went into
the Select Committee to see if the pro-
visions of the Bill as well as the parent
Act could be moderated and brought
nearer to the fundamental principles
of democracy, namely, personal liberty.
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As my colleagues have already stated,
we failed to convince the majority.
It has been mentioned that certain
improvements have been made and it
has been said in such a way as if we
were the beggars and our friends
opposite were generous enough to give
us something.

I wish to pecint out particularly
about other couniries where democracy
is of a longer duration. Take, for
instance, the United States of America,
where I happened to live three decades
ago and I lived there for over a decade.
At that time, the Communist Party
was not born, but the anarchists were
bug-bears for the Americans. They
had, in their immigration law, which
may have been changed now, not
mentioned the Communist Party. But,
every immigrant who went from
foralgn countries had to say on »ath
that he did not believe in anarchism.
In that way they were screening the
anarchists and keeping them out of the
eoimfry: In spite of that, some people
bm:amf anarchists, There was a good
desl »f propaganda by their leaders all
ovér the counfry and they preached
anarchism and said that the Govern-
ment shotld be changed by force.
But, you will be surprised to know
that there was no action taken. Their
audiences were few. No action was
taken in initiating proposals for a pre-
ventive detention law because that is
absolutely against the fundamental
rights of freedom of speech, and free-
dom of astociation enunciated in thelir
Constitution. The principles of their
Comptifution are so sacred even to the
ordimary man in the streef that mo
Government ever deres to encroach
upon those rights. Yet,® anarchism
would not spread there.

Sines then, things have changed.
From the reports that I read in the
papers and books coming from ‘hat
eountry, I find that to every American
whetker he is in the Government or a
private citizen, Communism is like a
red rag to a bull, Communists and
Communism will subvert the American
way of life. That is why they see red
everywhere. Yet, as vou know, Sir,
there is no Preventive Detantion Act.
Lately, there have been Communists
who, as spies for Russia, have delved
into atomic secrets. Some of them
were caught selling them to Russia,
Fven then America has not initinted
any Preventive Detention Act. Thev
have other laws by the due process of
wrhich thev punish them. In that way
Cummunism does not soread. The

ple who are anxlous to protect their
rivil libertles are in such a position
that Communism does not grow there.
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Similarly, recently in Japan, the
Constitution that was promulgated, I
believe it is after the American pattern,
because American occupation forces
under General MacArthur were doing
everything to introduce American
democracy into Japan that had gone
through all kinds of authoritarian rule.
In that Constitution, there is no pro-
vision for a Preventive Detention Act.
Recently there were riots against
Americans. Some Japanese friends
who came to India, only a few days
ago, assured me that those riots were
engineered by the Communists and
perhaps some North Koreans resident
in Japan. But, there is no preventive
detention. Under the ordinary law, the
leaders of such disruptive forces are
taken in hand, they go to the law
courts and there they are suitably
punished.

So it is in the United Kingdom and
I do not think it necessary for me to
repeat all that, because the provisions
and judgments in the United Kingdom
have been often quoted here and I
cannct improve on them.

In our counrty, if we go into the
genesis of the Preventive Detention
Act, we find that in Hyderabad, after
the Police Action and after the defeat
of the Razakars, trouble was created
there by certain elements, which, I am
bold to say, owed allegiance to another
an extra-territorial power. However
that may be, because of that trouble
and because of the disturbances in the
neighbouring Andhra country, the Pre-
ventive Detention Act was rushed
through by the late Sardar Patel when
he was the Home Minister. The im-
pression was given at that time that
it was a temporary measure. When
our friends opposite say that the pre-
sent Bill has many improvements that
the original Act did not have, and that
the number of detentions has been .
decreasing from 1950, I wish to pre-
sent another aspect of this decrease.
Does it not show that the trouble that
was started. that was rampant in
Hvderabad and the Andhra country In
1949-50 has svbsided? All over the
country, barring Hvderabad—the "case
of Saurashtra is mentioned now—
barring these twn places, there Is no
case for this Act to handle any dis-
ruption. There is no disruption.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am afraid the
an. Member is going hack to the
second reading stase. The House has
accepted the principle that this Bill is
necessary and also sent to the Select
Committee. Is it necessary to touch
upon the parent Act now? What the
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Select Committee has done, what the
Select Committee has not done, that
would be the subject matter at this
stage.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: May I sub-
mit, Sir, that just now Mr. Shiva Rao
went back to the past. I am trying to
prove that the Act is not necessary and
then I shall come to the second stage to
show how the Act bas been abused
and so I will have to go back.

Mr. Depuiy-Speaker: Mr. Shiva Rao
referred to the cases of detention and
grounds, etc. It had been alleged that
the Act had been abused, that there
must be something like a judicial
tribunal. He said that the Act nad
not been .abused, these were the
grounds, the grounds had been quoted
in part, that al the grounds had not
been fully placed beiore e House,
that only a portion had been placed
and so on. That is quite relevant.
There is no good going back to .he
parent Act now.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: 1 am going
back only to this exient, about
the beginning of the Act in luau.
I am not going back any further
than that. What I inean to say
is this that although the Home
Minister and the spedkers on the other
side have always repeated in their
speeches that this Act is not intended
against any political party, but from
all the speeches here as well as else-
where, it is evident that the Com-
mumist Party is the target (An hon.
Memuver : No, no.) but i also agree
with you that it is not the Communist
Party alone but all political parties
that oppose the Congress that are the

targets. This is my point. I will give
YOU.........

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am not going
to allow ins, waatever the hon, mem-
ber'rnagr feel. "I'his is going back once
again to the principle o1 the Bill, Whe-
ther it was to be accepted or not wus
discussed at length at the consideration
stage, and if it was not acceptable, it
could have been thrown out., The
House has accepted the principle. All
that the hon. Member can now say is
that some of the rigours of the Bill may
be removed, some other amendments
may be made, or some imprgvements
effected. That is all that is open to
any hon. Member at this stage.

Shri § : -omi
o arangadhar Das: I am coming

Mr. Depuly-Speaker: There {s no
good coming to that in a dilatory man-
ner like that,

_Bhrl Sarangadhar Das: 1t is not a
dilatory manner,

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I will not allow
any relerence to tne principles.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: On a pre-
vivus occasion L was not aulowed to
speak, and now atier giving me a
cnance. ..

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am sorry on
the previvus occaswon he had no cnance
to speak. He cannot refer to all that
now.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: I am not
reterring o inat wncident. 1 amn com-
ing to the pomnt where the sect sull
needs some improvement, particularly
that the Act should not be applied all
over tne couniry. It 15 wot Lecessary.
1In order to prove that I have w gve
some of tpe incrieats that have not
been mentioned here.

About two years ago, this Act was
appited in Assaim i connection with a
bye-election to the seat of the Chief
Minister Shri Bardoloi when he died.
Because the Socialist Party was con-
tesung there, some four or five days
beiore polling, there was a raid to arrest
the R.C.P.I. people who were taking
shelter in Assam. It was my rarty
that had informed the Assam Govera-
meat that the R.CP.I were forming
pockets in different places in Assam,
and they should be watchad, but
nothing was done, but the Act was
used 11 rounwng up Socialists and
Socialist sympathisers in that consti-
tuency due to which the Socialist Party
lost and the Congress won.

Some Hon, Members: Absolutely
false,

Shri Beli Ram Das (Barpeta): Abse-
lutely false. [ come from that
constituency, 1 was member of that
constituency for 15 years. There was
not a single arrest of any Socialist.

Shri Sarangadhar Das: I do not want
to be disturbed. I am here to gpeak.
You can speak afterwards,

An. Hon. Member: He s uneasy
now.

-Shri Sarangadhar Das: Talk -abnuut
uneasiness here, there is uneasiness on
the other side rather.

12 Noox

The same way it is being applied
against inconvenient men in the trade
union movement. In Bombay today
there are about five or six trade uninn
leaders under detention. There is one
De Mello, a very powerful man and
now Secretary of the Bombay
Dnck Workers’ Union, He was named
by mv party as a candidate In ' that
dock ares, and in the mmonth



5067 Preventive Detention

- [Shri Sarangadhar Das]

of August before nomination papers
were to ed, ne was
spirited away. He 1s still un-
der detention in Bombay jails. If
a man organises trade unions, and if
there is a rival trade union try-

to monopolise, then if
the subedars of the Central Govern-
ment, the Chief Ministers, find the
man inconvenient, they clap him in
jail under the FPreventive Detention
Act. Many a time challenges nave
been given and it was discussed in the
Bombay Council lately, but the Chief
Minister said that he is a dangerous
man. Well I ask, it he is a dangerous
man, if his Union demands that he
should be tried in a law court, why
15 he not tried? That is why I say
this Act is being used in order to op-
pose all Opposition whether it is Com-
munist, Hindu Maha Sabha, Socialist
or any other party., Any party that
is. opposed to the Congress 1s persona
non-grata to my friends opposite and
consequently the Act has to be used,
because in the law courts, the cases
cannot be won.

. There is another instance in Orissa.
Although the Preventive Detention Act
was not on the statute book then, the
Public Maintenance of Order Act
which was in existence in some of the
States was used against a Socialist
worker who had gone among the tribal
people. His movements were restrict-
sd. He was given notice to appear
before the superintendent or tue
deputy superintendent of police and
give his programme of tour. If he
changed that programme, he must g0
back to the superintendent or deputy
superintendent of police, although he
might be 15 or 20 miles away, inform
him, get his sanction znd then alone
could he start his new programme.

This is another Act in  line
with the Preventive Deten-
tion Act that came later,

which was used to stifle opposition.
Fortunately for me. 1 was in that area
when this order was passed on this
Socialist worker. It was said the
Adivasis, the tribal people, are excit-
able, and there should be no party pro-
paganda among them. I went all over
that area, many of the tribes that
live in the Keonjhar district, and
found them the most peacesble people.
I saw one case in a village where this
Socialist worker had helped the vil-
lagers to initiate a school. As our
Governments do not establish any
schools, a public organisation goes
and initiates a school there, and they
were building a little mud-house
which was stopped by the police saying
that the Government orders were such
that they could not build this school
for the ignorant village people. On
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the one hand, we have ignorance all
over the country. Our Education Minis-
try says we must remove this ignor-
ance within ten years or iwenty years,
whatever their Five Year Plan is,
and when we go to the State Govern-
ments, there is no money to establish
schools, and when some public organi-
sation with a litlle bit of money wants
to put up a school, it becomes the
Socialist Party’s school, consequently
it must be stopped, prevented. That
was done in the district of Keonjhar.
I know of other instances which I do
not want to say because they are
similar.

Shri Syamnandan Sahaya (Muzaf-
farpur Central): Was the school closed
under the Preventive Detention order?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: It was under
the Orissa Public Maintenance Order,
similar to the Preventive Detention
Act, the elder brother, that was born
before.

Pandit Thakur Das Bhargava: In
what year?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: Although I
have said that I do not see the neces-
sity for this Act, it is being enacted
this time for a longer period up to
the end of 1954. We tried to have a
shorter duration for the Act, so that
Parliament may get facts and figures
if necessary and review it from time
to time. and then decide whether to
prolong it or to stop it. But that also
failed. My contention is that in the
name of suppressing Communism and
the Communist Party in India, the
party that is now in power, and which
is now well-known to be the sup-
porters of vested interests, the sup-
porters of the status quo of Indian
Society...

Shri Syamnandan Sahaya:
are the vested interests?
been completely abolished.

Where
They have

Shri Sarangadhar Das: To maintain
the status quo of our society, that
party says to us “We know every-
thing well. Whatever we say you
must carry out, so that there cannot
be apy change in the structure of our
society.” It is not law and corder, it
is not peace and tranquillity that is
really behind the mind of the mover
of this Bill,

‘When you take into consideration
the way it has been abused, I also
have to point out another thing. If
the Communist Party in the Telen-
gana and in the Andhra areas created
these {roubles and these disruptions.
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i ask what was ovur police and magis-
Lacy dolag were:  During the last
jour or five years, our police and our
magistracy ail over the country have
werume ncompetent and inefficient. 1
suould like to ask tnis question today,
now 15 11 wien wnac although Laik Al
was put under house arrest instead oi
in Jad, ana how is 1t that although a
very nigh officer of the police, such as
e Lepuly inspector-General of
Police or some otner high officer was
suarding the House, he did not know
zbout the escape of Laik Ali till two
aays aiter he had departed? That is
why 1 say, our police, and our C.ID.
are not watehiul. [ may recall here
what an American writer, Mr. John
Gunther who wrowe a book on Asia
said n this connecuon. He said that
last time he was going through India,
the Home Member or the Home Secre-
+ary of the British Government had
saa: “Tms tune wien Congress wants
to dy anything or wants to have
satycgraha or cause any trouble dur-
nyg the war. we have their autabers.
We have the *number of every leader,
evey sub-leader, end every sub-sub-
\ender, and every village-worker, and
we will nab ithem in 24 hours” I
zezd that when I was in Jail urnder
detention, and I felt that
the British at that time were wvery
efficient, in getting at everybody.
But whuat s our police doing
today? When there is some trouble
in any place in Orissa or in any otne:
State, and when it comes to the top,
lhey get st tnose people who have
shellered these disrupters and harass
them and put them under detention.
Inctead of improving the efficiency of
the police. and getting at the proper
officers in the proper places, what is
Government doing? What the Gov-
ernments in the States are doing is
simply to cover up their inefficiency and
inrompetency through this Preventive
Detention Act so that any one who
criticizes Government and becomes a
little inconvenient in any place where
the Opposition Party begins to grow
and the Congress begins to wane,
may be hauled up under this Act
which could be applied to him or
against any party to which that person
belongs.,

1 have aisp other cases that have
happened recently. Dr. Syama Prasad
Mookerjee had mentioned a case in
Ajmer. I hzve here signed declara-
tions by DM.L.As., M.Ps., many muni-
cipal commissioners etc., who have
pleaded for him and said that he is
ot guilty of the. charges that have
meen  framed against him, A large
mimber of journalists also had signed

_ taere, because the person concerned
was a journalist himself. (Interrup-
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tion) The hon., Member can szy what
he wants to say aiter L have nnishea.

They have all pleaded for him...

Shri Jwala Prashaa (:A)Jmer Nortn):
May L Know tne name§ oL we M.FPs.Y

Suri sarangdaar Das: T'wo M.L.As,
Mr. Arjun Das, MI. Parasuraal, Oue
Wlic., WC. ML L. Ddag, dadd ol pel-
sULS, MUNWIPal CoNLSSI0NErs, auvo-
cales;, medical practliluners, Journalisis
ete.,... :

shri R. K. Chaudbury (Gauhati):
May 1 know whether py MLF., medical
practitioners are meant?

Shri Chatvopadhyaya (Vijayavada) :
Or does it mean ‘Major Foet'?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: It is some
poutical  jeawousy unaer wmch ine
party has' kept uncer detenton iuz
people from the Opposition. Waen
iamme concitions prevalled in Hissar,
in Punjab, my party was asking the
people to protest agaiust it, anu w go
w the district ' magistrate or the
deputy commissioner to represent thewr
Erievances. But there two people
nave been detained just a few days
ag0.  (nerrupaon)  grom all  tis,
you will see that it is the Communisc
Party which is using violence, 1 know
tn::t. But the Socialist Party docs
not,

Ch. Rambir Singh (Rohtak): Will
the hon. Member cite the names ur
the persons who have been detained?

Shri Sarangadhar Das: The Sociaiisi
Party believes in constitutional agita-
twon, in pertorming satyagraha to rght
sny evil that is before us. It is ail
peacetul. (Unterruption) By fasting
they do not take the liberty of others.
They are free to fast as they please.
That is a personal matter.

Under these circumstances, how is it
possible that these men who do nut
belong to the Communist Party are de
tained? It is just simply detaining
every inconvenient man or woman who
happens to belong to some Opposition
party. And finally I put it before the
House that although in the Select
Committee we had given our notes ot
dissent, the amendments were reject-
ed by the majority, that is, the
Congress Party—about 30 of them. You
must consider, Sir, whether there is
such a necessity now to have this Act
to cover the whole country. Barring
Hyderabad and Saurashtra, there is
no trouble anywhere. (An Hon.
Member ;  Rajasthan) In Rajasthan
it was ircompetency. Since Rajasthan
was formed, I remember the way the
villagers killed a magistrate and some
police officials in Karauli, when Sardar
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Vallabhbhai was living. That sort of
thing you cannot throw at us without
looking inwards and finding out what
they have been doing. Because these
disruptive elements are abroad and
they can kill a magistrate, a law that
was never known is being introduced.
I know Rajasthan politics, I know
what was happening in Rajasthan be-
fore the elections, I know some of my
friends in Rajasthan, wvery deas
friends, who were wanting to dis-
franchise the rulers. I was one whu
was unwilling to subscribe to it. I
said I have not worked for the Rajas
or Maharajas. I worked for ten years

giving up my industrial career
to end feudal rule, Feudal rule is now
ended. But the Raja or Maharaja 1s
just as much a citizen as I am. How-
ever, my friends from Rajasthan were
trying to win over the people by dis-
franchising the Rajas and Maharajas.
That is not the way of democracy.
What happened in Rajasthan? It 1s
no use my ng here now, but I
can say in short that with most of the
States that were merged or formed
Into Unions, Congress organisations
began to peter out from that time.
There was no Congress work among
the masses and consequently, the
vacuum was filled by any other pariy
that happened to be there. So my
friends cannot give the instance of
Rajasthan. I say no other State, ex-
2ept Hyderabad and  Saurashtra, is
disturbed and the Act should be ap-
plicable only to those two States and
nowhere else until there is apprehen-
sion of imminent danger and the Cen-
tral Government or the President de-
clares that there is a disturbed condi-
tion in a certain area, and then only
can Government take action.

Swami Ramapanda Tirtha (Gul-
berga): 1 have to patticipate in the
discussions at a stage where the
principle of this enactment has been
agreed to. I, therefore, do not want to
g0 intko the merits or otherwise of the
necessily of enacting this legislation.
I have been listening to the speeches
of some of the Members and I thought
it was necessary for me to say what I
feel in the present context.

Do not consider us to be so mean as
to feel that no Opposition should be
allowed under a  democratic regime.
That is not at all the intention. We
are wise enough to know that demo-
cracy cannot flourish except under the
criticisms of the Opposition. It would
be uncharitable on the part of the
Ofposlﬂcm to say that this measure iIs
directed against the Communists, Not
at all. Tt Is only directed against

‘to cast aspersions and say

those elements, sections, individuals,
who resort 1w violence, WIO Iesulu
to certain acts which are directed
against the very fundamentals oi e
Constitution, 1 am not atraid of the
Communists. Why should 17 Because
it 15 arter all people who will de-
cide whether they would Like a paru-
cular order, economic or otherwise. 1
need not be afraid of any school ol
thought. Enough for us that we be-
lieve in a particular ideology, preacn
it and we shall convert the people tu
our own point of view. Therelore, the
law that is being promulgaied should
not be construed to be a hit against
the Communist Party.

My friend, Mr. Sarangadhar Das,
has gquoted certain instances. I kave
had the pleasure of working with hin
some years back, and I teel if there is
any genuine grievance against the use
or mususe of a parucular law, it has
to be voized. But to feel that this law
is being promulgated to crush the
Socialist Party: I think it would ve
the greatest error on the part of any
democratic Government to try to sup-
press any political party with the force
and strength of the bayonet. We know
Communism cannot be crushed by
bayonets. We know that, but it is aisu”
clear that no society, no social order,
no economic order can be ushered in
or allowed to be wushered in at the
point of the bayonet. That is all tne
purpose ot this Act, I, theretore, appeal
to my friends who difter from us not
that we
want to ecrush you, Who are we w0
crush you? It is not bayonets that
crush 1deologies, as I have said.
After all this democratic regime
I do call it a democratic regime in spite
of all the objections raised against it;
it is a ‘democratic regime—if at all
this democratic regime is to survive,
we know it is by bettering the lot of
the people and not by promulgating
such an Act. That we do realise. But
I say we are passing through a period
of transition and looking to the past.
I have the boldness and the courage
to say that the situation is still fluid.
I do not know what situation may
arise a two months hence. I am not a '
poet and I am not going to quote any
verses here, but [ can say that certain
developments are taking place, certain
incidents are being fosterad. and we
do not know where this is going to end.

Something has been said about
Hyderabad. I do not want tc dilatz
upon that subject. I do not want to
say anything about Telengana also be-
cause the past is unhappy, and let us
bury the past. There were atrocities
on the part of the police in a parti-
cular context which was also atrocious.
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let us forget that. But today why
?ﬁo{ﬁd we not feel reassured that
there will be no recurrence of violence?
Is it too much to expect this of any
political party? The right of vote is
there and I do not think that those of
us who are sitting on the Treasury
Benches feel that for all times, as the
Hroverb goes—S131 ¥ faarFy —
we are going to occupy these Benches.
well, democracy works through jolts
and changes, let it take its own course
But when a mentality is being created
that it is the bayonet and the sten gun
:nd recourss to violence that will
change the social or the economic
order, it is our duty to tell the people
that it is not going to pay. I believe
ne purpose of this Act is not to hit
ny political party. I would humbly
submit that in Hyderabad so far as I
know no such hit has been given
urder a popular regime. and it
*will not be given in future. I
can assure my friends about that. But
there are democratic practices
and conventions, methods and ways.
If they are followed I do not think that
the Home Minister of this Governmant
would ever feel the necessity of put-
ting into execution any of the provi-
sions of this Preventive Detention Act.
An argument has been advanced that
this Act should be applied to parti-
cular parts of India only. I do not
know what parts are entitled to its ap-
plication. My friend. Mr, Saranga-
dhar Das said that Hyderabad may
be considered as a suitable place, My
friends of the opposite section who
differ from Mr. Sarangadhar uJais
would say that it is not at all neces-
sary in Hyderabad. So. it is the whole
situation that you wvisualise and the
country as a wholz that you consider,
nd when you feel that it is necessary
o prevent recurrence of such sub—
versive and violent activities, the Aect
becomes applicable to all the narts of
India. In what parts it will actually
r~erate depends upon the situation.

I would humbly submit to the
Home  Minister that the misgivings
Leing entertained by friends on the
other side are because there were cer-
tain misuses. wrong uses to whirh

ch Acts were directed, and it i= ro-
duty to remove those misgivings. to
do awav with them, and to reassure
cur friends that this Act is not direct-
ed against any political party, be it the
Crmnmnniete.  the Hindn Mahasabha.
the Socialistz or anv others. I would
in all humility submit that as Ae-
macrats we have to see that ever~
varty has the freedom to propagate
its id=as democraticallv and that no
:such lberty is suppressed.

One word more and I shall have
finivhed. T know that India is passing

e

1 AUGUST 1952

(Second Amendment) 5074
Bill

through a critical pericd. There iz a
clash of ideologies and it is bound to
be there because the world is in such
a stormy atmosphere. But it is also
equally true that the storm and the
excitement and the turmoil can be
pacified only by bettering the lot of
the people. That is a posltive ap-
proach and with that positive

proach if we proceed I am sure

day will not be far off when this Pre-
ventive Detention Act will not be
found necessary in this land of ours.

I hope I have put before the House
what we on this side feel about this
enactment. It is an extraordinary
legislation, no doubt, but it is neces-
sary, and the sooner the necessity for
such an enactment goes the better for
all of us because then we shall feel
that in Indie there is not any activity
which may go against the very funda-
mentals of the Constitution.

Shri Seshagiri Rao: I will not speak
on the prinelple of the Bill beeauss
hon. Members whe preceded me have
spoken on it at length. There are
four fundamental rights that hgve
been conferred under the Constitutipn
of India on the detenus, namely, first-
ly. the right of emquiry before an
Advisory Board, secondly, that the
detenu must be able to get the grounds
of his detentlon “as soon as may be”,
thirdly, that he must be given the
earliest opportunity to make a repre-
gsentation, and, fourthly and more im-
portant than all these, that the maxi-
mum period of detention should be
given in the Act. The peculiar feature
of this Preventive Detentlon Aet &
that it eontains wverbatim the exaet
words that are foynd in the Constltu-
tion. Artlele 22(8) of the Constifu-
tion says:

“When any person iz detained
in pursuance of an order made
under any law providing for pre-
ventive detention, the authority
making the order shall, as soon as
may be, communicate to such per-
eon the grounds on whirh the
order has been made and shall af-
ford him the earliest opportunitv
of making a representatlon against
the order.”

How far these two mandatory pro-
visions have been followed in this Bill
is an important point. In section 7
of the Act it says:

“When a person is detained in
nursuance of a detention order.
the authority making the order
nicate to him grounds om
shall, as soon as may be, commu-
which the order has been made and
shall afford to him the earliest op-
portunity n;f making a representa.



5070 Preventive Detention

|Shri Seshagiri Raol

They are the same words, “as soon
as may be”, as are found in the Con-
stitution. What is intended in the
Constitution is that a certain time-
limit should be given so that the
authorities may not say that the
reasonable time is a month or two
months, The Select Committee has
rightly come to the conclusion that
not more than five days at the latest
should be given. The time-limit is
important because the detenu must
have the earliest opportunity to make
the representation. What is the op-
portunity that is going to be giyen?
The important point is that within 2
week or three or four days the de-
tenu must be taken to the State Gov-
ernment so that he may make the re-
presentation. What is the | earliest
opportunity? Is it only giving him
some pencil and paper? - Or is he #0-
ing to be taken to the State Govern-
ment? Under the Constitution, the
only important right which
a detenu has is of making e
nresentations to Government and also
the right of enquiry by the Advisory
Board. This is not clearly defined in
Section 7 and the same phrase
Gearliest opportunity” is used. Is it
one month or two months? Especially
when the order is going to be follow-
ed by a reference within twelve days,
he must be given the earliest op-
portunity to appear before the Stafe
Government and express his case.

1 am not inclined to support the re-
presentation of 2 detenu ‘by a legal
nractitioner. Article 22 (1) says:

«No person who is arrested
shall be l:::letaiueci in custody with-
out being informed, as soon as
may be, of the .grounds for such
arrest nor shall he be denied the
right to consult, and to be defend-
ed by, a legal practitioner of his

choice.”

But 22 (3) says:

“Nothing in clauses (1) and (2)
shall apply—

(a) to any person who for the
time being is an enemy alien; or

(b) to any person who is arrested
or detained under any law provid-
ing for preventive detention.”

Therefore, as long as the Constitu-
tion remains as it is and is not amend-
ed, representation by legal practi-
+ipners is not possible. It would be
gainst the Constitution. But 1 want
10 know whether by liberalising the
provisions this right can be conferred
upon the detenu.
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One new provision that has been .
made is that a Iresh detention <an
only be made if certain  fresh facts
are brought to light. But what would
be the position if certain facts are
bmugl}t to light when the man is in
detention?  Could he ke detained
again on the basis oif ihosz faeis? i
want to have clarification on this
point.

Shri Altekar (North 3Satara): As a
legal practitioner ioc the lasi thirty
years and also as a siudent oi aw
and the philosophy of law, 1 would
like to state that the civil law of 2
free nation is the reflection of the be-
naviour and culture of the society and
the sections of socicty in that nation,
and the criminal lew is the reaction
of the State ' towards the behaviour
and culture of the society or sectioms
of society in that nation. When it
is said that we are enacting a black
‘aw or that this Preventive Detention
Act is an unusual Aet, we have to
take into consideration the objective
~onditions in the country. f you
simply sit in a room lize u philosopher
or a professor of lavw and lay down
how the law should be, what the in-
t:hwdual rights shou!d be and how
they should be protected, without any
relation whatsoever to the behaviour
of the sections of the sociely in the
nation, then you will be doing 3. thing
which is entirely unconnected with
the objective conditions in. that nation.
I beg to point out that when we ere
enacting this Preventive Detention
Bill and certain provisions are made
therein, we do so aus= of the naces-
sity imposed by conditions that obtain
at present. Wien it is stated that in
the Select Committes certain oro-
vosals were made and that they were
not accepted, I beg to submit that the
whole attention to this Bill has been
given by taking into con=zideration the
conditions that obtain in the country -
and, as a matter of fact. the utmost
concessions have been given and the
clauses that are now before the House
after return of the Bill from the Selec! -
Committee are such as are necessi
by the circumstances th~! i
day. When various demznds are i
by the Opposition that the & '
should have the help of a legal vra:ii
tioner when the case come: vp be
fore the Advisory Board or that a¥
the facts available to the Governmenl
should be given to the deten:u, it uli
mately comes to this that there should
be a regular trial and nothine more
and nothing less. The only question
is whether the circumstances ‘hat
obtain today can permit such a faci-
lity, that is, whether we can rule ac-
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cording to the normal law. I beg to
submit that the provisions are such
as are necessitated by the circum-
stances of the time.

There is a great obsession in the
mind of the Opposition that this Act
15 intended to crush political op-
ponents. There is nothing of the kind.
If you look at the various parts of
the country during the last few years.
you will find that a sort of technigue,
a mechanism, a’ method has been em-
ployed by some anti-social elements
ihat makes it almost impossible to
bring the culprits to book. It is im-
possible to maintain peace and order
and tranquillity through the ordinary
iaw of the land and the provisions en-
visaged here are necessary for this

purpose.

in certain districts of Bombay State,
the villagers come and say that there
is no regular rule by the Government
in their area, because crimes and
murders are committed; arson and
looting are indulged in. An ordinary
person finds it difficult to lead a
peaceful life. The difficulty is {felt
when it is stated that there should be
- witnesses; there should be cross-
examination; there should be the help
of a pleader and so on. For, these
villagers are living under such ter-
rorism that they are unable to come
forward and state what is actually
happening. They come to you and
say: “These acts have been per-
petrated. Please do not mention our
names, but somehow or other bring
the offenders to book.” When the
people concerned are themselves so
much terror-stricken, you can imagine
how difficult it would be for witnesses
to come and state what has happened.
I shall just state how these people be-
have. I have nothing to say with res-
pect to any political party. I only
speak of certain anti-social elements
who want to thrive, by preying upon
the common man. They have got un-
licensed arms; they form themselves
into a gang; and the victims are so
terrorised that when the police come
they are afraid of giving any informa-
tion. The witnesses too are afraid of
coming forward and giving evidence.

Another technique which is usually
resorted to by these culprits is to efface
altogether any trace of _evidence that
may be available, I will just cite a
few cases that happened after the
elections. In a certain village there
Wwas a person, a patil, who was said to
be a Communist. He was kidnapped.
No one knows where he is. There was
another person who stood as a_candi-
date on the Socialist ticket. He was
kidnapped by three persons with un-
licensed arms. They are known to be
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criminals. No one knows where the
kidnapped person is. A friend of
mine who also happens to be a iriend
of that Sacialist says that both these
persons have n done away with
and as a matter of fact they will never
see the light of the world again.

The technique that is usually fol-
lowed by these persons is this. Taoey
take the victims to a very distant, re-
mote and secluded place. They cut
him to pieces and these pieces are
thrown into the deep waters of a river
where great fishes eat them away. 3o,
there will not be any trace of :he
victims.  Such persons we have to
deal with; such persons have to he
brought to book. The poor villagers
are not in a position to raise their little
finger, or even their voice, againgt
these persons. They are very much
afraid on account of the atrocities
committed by them They are afraid
to seek the help of the police and the
magistracy. They say: if we seek the
aid of the police or the magistracy.
the next day our houses will not he
there; we do not know where we our-
selves would be,

We have, therefore, to root out these
unsocial elements who, as a matter ot
fact, are having a rule of no law in
several villages. Here in this House
we hear sermons on civil liberties ona
individual rights, and the protection
of rights of a detenu. It was said that
the detenus should be given legal aid,
that he should be allowed to lead evi-
dence and also that he should have the
right to cross-examine witnesses, jJ
submit that on account of the rule of
terror that obtains in several of the
villages, no witnesses would come w
give evidence. In these circumstances
we have to see whether the rights «f
such persons who are a menace to
society, and who, as a matter of fact.
if I may use a strong word, are preying
upon society as ferocious animals, are
fo be protected. If we give legal help
and the right of cross-examination ta
such detenus who are behaving in this
manner, no witness would come foc-
ward to give evidence.

Shri B. 8. Murthy (Eluru): On a
point of order, Sir. The hon. Member
used the words “ferocious animale”
and immediately referred to detenus.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: So long as he
has not referred to any hon. Member
here, he is in order. He thinks they
are all in the pature of animals, We
have not evolved from that stage.

Shri Nambiar: There are ex-detenus
here.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The ex-detenu
is an hon. Member of this House now.
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[Mr. Deputy-Speaker]
he is no longer a detenu. Many hon.
Members on the other side of the
House too are ex-detenus.

Shri Altekar: I myself am an ex-
detenu.

I am only speaking of persons who
are a men to any civilised b‘J(.lﬂ’y
I do not at ail refer to any political
party, or persons holding particuias
ideologies. I am only pointing out
that such pr=cautions and such
measures are necessary for the pur-
pose of maintaining peace and
tranquillity in the country. If there
is no such measure it will be aksolutely
impossible to catch hold of such
persons and bring them to bock. That
is what we are actually experiencing
in the Bombay Presidency fur so many
years. Here are the figures I have
with regard to Bombay Presidency.

On the 28th February i951 there
were only 21 political detenus and 66
eriminal detenus: on the 21st August
1951 30 political detenus and 94
criminal detenus; on 29th February
1952, 34 political detenus and 146
criminal detenus; on 30"h June 1952,
29 political detenus and 214 criminal
detenus.

An Hon. Member: What is meant
oy criminal detenus.

Shri Altekar: Persons who have
been detained for comunitting criminal
acts like arson, murder, duccity, ete,
and whose previous history shows
that they have indulged in such
crimes.

1 submit that unless there is such
a measure, there will not be any peace
and tranquillity in the zountry. Whaut
people actually say is not that there
should not be such an Act, but that
it is not being used properly and
sufficiently. They ask: why are you
so much restrained in using it against
such persons.

So far as these persons are con-
cerned, I may say that many of them
are persons who are not connected
with any political par!y or opinion.
They are anti-social elements and
their activities have got to be curbed
in an effective manner so that such
crimes may not 3iake place again.
When afflicted persons come to us they
say : unless you are ia a position tlo
bring these persons to book you have
no right to rule the country. When
we ask them who these people are
they say that they come near you;
some times move rournd you. But jou
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do not know them. You go only by
their outward appearance, They are
not like the Rakshasas of Ramayana.
They appear to be o-dinary persons,
but as a matter of fact we know
exactly how they behave and what
they do. I am reminded here of an
incident in Ramayand. Rama, after
Sita was kidnapped, was going in
search of her and was moving
towards the South. He then came
near 1&ke Pampa. Having come there
he saw a white bird with tall legs,
a long beak and white feather
(An Hon. Member : Not a white cap?)
and he said to Lakshmana: "“Oh,
Lakshmana, see on the bank cf this
Pampa this white bird ; he appears to
be a saintly one—

I FEAT q9qrai aF:  qeasfEE |
TAgzafa e stfoAt qeeigm o

He lifts his toe genily and paces
forward very slowly so that no insect
may die underneath.” When these
words of Rama were heard by a fish
in the lake, that fish is reported to
have said :

wgamt fawnartr aganfa fasfea
aw & add ww g fsgfoa: 0

Only an associate knows the

behaviour of his comrade, Rama, what
praise are you bestowing upon this
white bird who has totally annihilated
my family "

So, when such sort of persons are
there moving in society and the
ordinary law is not suffivient to catch
hold of them, to curb their activities
and to bring them to book, we have
to enact measures that will as a matter
of fact enable the Government to
prevent such sort of erimes happening,
to prevent such atrncities being com-
mitted. And we wan do this by the
measure that is before the House. I
submit that the measure that is before
us and that is being enacted by us has
given almost all the corcessions that
could be given so that the individual
liberty of the detenu or his rights may
be protected to the extent that they
can be protected. The otiher alter-
native before us was to drop the
measure altogether and to have
recourse to the ordinary laws and say
let there be any sort of chaos 1n
society and let the lives of millions oz
people be subjected to the atrocities
and tortuers of some anti-social
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elements. Are we going to do that?
That is the question before us. If we
are to main peace and tranqullity
in the country, if we are to maintain
the civil liberties nf millicns of pecple
in thjs couniry, if we are to maintain
that the social life of the vast nuinber
of villagers that are dwelling in the
lakhs of villages in this country
should go on smoothly and peacefully,
then such a measure as is being
enacted here is absolutely neccssary,
and we have enacted only such
provisions as are necessary for the
urguse of bringing these perscns to
ook.

I submit that if we look at the Bill
as it has emerged frum the Select
Committee it can he seen that we
have, as a matter of fact, while
considering the inain Ad!, pgiven four
~ncessions to  the Opposition's
demands. Originally, section 7 was
not in any way sought to be amended.
But when a demand wus madas by the
Opposition we agrzed to make an
amendment. What was originally
provided in section 7 was that the
grounds may be made known to the
detenu as soon as may be. When
there was a demand that a specific
time should be put in there, we agreed
and we have put in “ as soon as may
be, but not later than five days from
the date of detention”. That was the
concession that nas been given.

1pMm

Then in section 8 it was asked what
should be the composition of ihe
Advisory Board.

Mr, Deputy-Speaker: Is the hon.
Member concluding? .

Shri Altekar: No. Sir, I shall
require another ffteen our twenty
minutes.

. Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Then he may
continue in the ~fternoon.

MESSAGES FROM THE COUNCIL OF
STATES

Secretary: Sir, I have to re}:vort
the following two messages received
gt:?es the Secretary of the Council of

(i) “In accordance with_ the
provisions of rule 125 of the Rules
of Procedure and Conduct of
Business in the Council of States,
I am directed to inform the
House of the People that the
Council of States at its sitting
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held on the 31st July 1952, agreed
without any amendrent to the
State  Armed  Poiice  Forces
(Extension of Laws) Bill, 1952,
which was passed by the House
of the People at iis sitting held
on the 15th July, 1952

(ii) “I am directed to inform the
House of the Psople that the Code
of Criminal Procedure (Second
Amendment) Bill, 1452, which was
passed by the House of the People
at its sitting held or the 1ith July.
1952, has been passed by the

- Council of States at its sitting
held on the 31st July, 1952, with
the following amendment :

‘That in clause 7 of the Bill at
the end of clause (a) of the
proposad section 132A of the
principal Act, the words “so
operating” shall pe added.’

I am, therefore, io return here-
with the said Bi'l in arcurdence
with the provisions of rule 126 of
the Rules of Procedure and Con-
Auct of Business in the Couneil
of States with the request that the
concurrence of the House of the
Feople to the :aid émendment be
communicated to the Council.”

CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE
(SECOND AMENDMENT) B1LL

Secretary: Sir, I beg to lay on
the Table of the House the Code of
the Criminal Procedure  (Second
Amendment) Bill. 1952, whirh has
been returned by the Council of States
with an amendment.

RESERVE AND AUNILTARY AlR
FORCES BILL

PRESENTATION OF REPORT OF JOINT
CoMMITTEE

The Minister of Defenee (Shri
Gopalaswami) : I beg tu present 1he
Report of the Joint Committee on ihe
Bill to provide for the constitution
and regulation of certain Air Forve
Reserves and also an Auxiliary Air
Force and for matters connacled
therewith.

The House then adjourned till Half
Pact Three of the Clock.
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